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Be a global leader in the production of premium textile products.

MISSION

Drive growth through sustainable and innovative manufacturing, where we
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TOWELLERS LIMITED
Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Notice is hereby given that the Fifty Second 52" Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders of
Towellers limited will be held on Tuesday October 28" 2025 at 3:30 p.m at the Registered Office of the
Company at W.S.A. 30-31, Block #1, Federal B Area Karachi and through video Link facility to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the 51% Annual General Meeting held on October 25" 2024,

2. To receive and adopt the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended June 30™ 2025
together with Chairman Review, Director’s and Auditor’s reports thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year and fix their remuneration.
OTHERS BUSINESS:

4. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

. Farhan Adil
Company Secretary
Karachi: September 29 2025.
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NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21% 2025 to October 28"
2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar
M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Limited, 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A Phase V11, Karachi, 75950
by close of business on Monday 20", October 2025 will be treated as being in time to attend and vote at
the meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this AGM may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend the meeting and vote instead of him/her, Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the
Company not later than 48 hours before the meeting or emailed at farhan@towellers.com. Form of proxy
is annexed to this notice and attached in the Annual Report, which is also available on the Company’s
website.

3. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circular # 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

4. In order to maximize the member’s participation, the company is convening this AGM via video link in
addition to holding physical meeting with shareholders . Accordingly those members and participants who
desire online participation in the AGM are requested to register themselves by sending an email along
with following particulars and valid copy of their CNIC at farhan@towellers.com with subject of
“Registration for TOWL AGM 2025 not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Name of
Shareholder, CNIC No, Folio No/CDC Account No, Mobile No, Email Address. Video Link to join the
AGM will be shared with only those members whose emails, containing all the required and correct
particulars, are received at farhan@towellers.com.

5. Under the second provision of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, listed companies are required
to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account
designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the Shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic
Credit Mandate Form available on Company’s website and send the duly signed form along with a copy
of CNIC/NTN to our Share Registrar in case of physical shares. In case shares held in CDC then
Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholders broker/participant/CDC
account services. In case of non-receipt of IBAN detail, the Company will be constrained to withhold
payment of dividend under Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017.

6. Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares if any are advised to contact
our Share Registrar to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend/shares, if any.In compliance with
Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such
dividend outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall be deposited to
the Federal Government in case of Unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be delivered to the
SECP.

7. The SECP through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised listed
companies to adhere to provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 by replacing physical shares
issued by them into book entry form, shareholders, who hold physical shares, are advised to convert their
shares into electronic form in terms of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017.

&
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8. The Company has circulated Audited Financial Statements to its members through QR-enabled code
with weblink at their registered email addresses,. Printed copy of the same can be provided to the
members upon request. The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2023, have also been available on the Company’s website .

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, different rates are prescribed for deduction
of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies, as under:

For filers of income tax returns 15%
For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

10. To comply with various statutory requirements, and to avoid any non- compliance of law in future, all
shareholders are hereby advised to coordinate/update their records with their respective Participants/CDC
Investor Account Services /Share Registrar are as under:

Submission of copies of their validupdated CNIC/NTN/Zakat Declaration/Exemption Form/Tax
Exemption Certificate, valid bank Account detail/IBAN for future cash Dividend, In terms of section 119
of the Companies Act 2017 and Regulation 47 of the Companies Regulations, 2024, including Mobile
Number/ Land line Number and email Address, Promptly notify any change in mailing address, by
writing to the office of Towellers Share Registrar.

11. No gifts /coupons shall be distributed during the Annual General Meeting, through its Circular 2 of
2018 dated February 9, 2018/ or vide its S.R.O. 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025.
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CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW REPORT

| am pleased to present this Review Report to the shareholders of the Company, highlighting
the overall performance of the Board of Directors and the key achievements and activities
undertaken during the year.

The Board has carried out its responsibilities in a professional and effective manner, focusing
on

setting growth targets, exploring new markets, acquiring new customers, and strengthening
relationships with existing customers through consistent delivery of high-quality products. The
Chief Executive has kept the Board regularly informed by providing updates and reports on
business plans, operational performance, cash flows, financial matters, and risk management.

The year 2025 reflected gradual signs of recovery in Pakistan’s macroeconomic environment,
supported by relative fiscal stability and improved monetary management. However, this
stability was accompanied by stringent monetary and fiscal measures, which continued to slow
overall economic momentum. Businesses faced persistent challenges, including high energy
costs, elevated labor expenses, and increased taxation, while international competition
remained intense. Despite these pressures, the Company recorded a modest increase in sales,
which reflects the concerted efforts of the Board of Directors and management team to sustain
growth under difficult circumstances. Profit margins, however, came under pressure due to the
need to maintain competitive pricing in global markets and the overall rise in the cost of doing
business. Looking ahead, Pakistan holds promising opportunities through initiatives such as
CPEC Phase ll, the Reko Diqg project, and potential export diversification created by shifting
global trade flows under the new U.S. tariff policies. With these opportunities on the horizon,
the Company remains confident of improving performance and delivering sustainable growth in
the coming years.

The Board of Directors remains fully committed to driving the Company’s growth and
profitability in the coming years through dedicated efforts and strategic direction. Alongside
continuous process improvements, the Board has placed strong emphasis on sustainability,
including initiatives for workplace compliance, employee welfare, women empowerment, and
community engagement. The Company is also expanding its operations and has commenced
development on the additional factory plots acquired earlier to further enhance its production
capacities. | extend my best wishes to our dedicated Board of Directors and management team
for continued success in their endeavors.

Due to the strategic investments made in factory land and buildings during the year, along with
the impact of lower profitability, the Board has decided not to announce any dividend for the
year. These investments are expected to strengthen the Company’s foundation and support
improved returns in the future. We sincerely thank our valued members for their
understanding and patience in this regard and greatly appreciate their continued support and
confidence in the Company.

In conclusion, | wish to express my sincere appreciation to the Board of Directors for their
dedicated efforts in guiding the Company through these challenging times, and | extend my
best wishes to them on my own behalf and on behalf of all the members of the Company.

’ i,gg,s;_;ﬂ

ahjabeen Obaid
/ Chairperson

Karachi: September 29 2025
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, its our pleasure to place before you the Audited Financial
Statements of your Company for the year ended June 30th, 2025. These Financial Statement have
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standards and

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 under section 227.
ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Last three years i.e. from 2022 till 2024, remained quite turbulent as far as the Pakistan
economy is concerned. The year under review (2024-25) however has shown visible signs of
stabilization. Inflation, which had remained persistently high in the earlier years, eased
considerably and even fell to low single digits during the second half of the fiscal year. This
provided the State Bank of Pakistan the room to reduce the policy rate from its peak of 22% to
the current level of 11%. The external account also reflected improvement, with Pakistan
posting its first current account annual surplus of USS 2.1 billion approximately in more than a
decade, supported by stable remittances, import rationalization, and a relatively stable

exchange rate.

On the fiscal side, the Government recorded a primary surplus of around 2.68% of GDP during
the year 2025 reflecting its commitment to fiscal discipline under the IMF program rather than
an unsustainable robust growth. However, this stability came at a cost: tough measures such as
higher taxation on the textile sector, super tax continuation, and elevated energy tariffs placed
significant pressure on industrial competitiveness. Consequently, Pakistan’s textile exports grew
only marginally, and export revenues did not meaningfully move up despite gradual
improvements in global demand. Such growth is a notable improvement compared to near-

stagnation earlier, but still below the country’s long-term potential.

Iﬂ'

An emerging risk in 2025 is the U.S. “reciprocal” tariff regime, under which a 19% duty has been
imposed on Pakistan’s exports, notably in textiles, apparel, and surgical goods. This is expected
to exert pressure on export competitiveness, the current account, and overall growth
momentum. At the same time, the 50% tariff on Indian exports presents a relative competitive

opening for Pakistan to capture some of the orders diverted from India, partly offsetting the

adverse effects.
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Looking ahead, the outlook remains cautiously optimistic: if the IMF program remains on track,
and with renewed focus on projects such as Reko Dik and the launch of CPEC Phase 2, fresh
investment inflows and infrastructure development are expected to support long-term growth.
In addition, shifting global sourcing dynamics — particularly disruptions in textile supply from
politically unstable regions such as Bangladesh (political unrest) and Sri Lanka (economic and
political crisis) — present a window of opportunity for Pakistan to secure additional export
orders. With these developments, the country is well-positioned to benefit through greater
export diversification, improved efficiency, and stronger cost competitiveness, laying the

foundation for sustainable growth in the years ahead.
COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

During FY2025, the Company's net sales remained broadly in line with last year’s figures,
reflecting stability in topline despite challenging market dynamics. Annual turnover was Rs. 12.35
B as compared to Rs. 12.32 B in the year 2024. However, the overall profitability was impacted

due to extremely competitive international market and higher operating costs.

The Company posted a net profit after tax of Rs. 286.71 million, translating into an earnings per
share of Rs. 16.87. The profitability remained under pressure during the year as margins were
squeezed by a combination of factors, including rising labor costs, persistently high energy tariffs,
withdrawal of government incentives and subsidies, and an overall increase in taxation burden.
In addition, the industry continued to face stiff international competition, while domestic
inflationary pressures further added to the cost of doing business. Despite these challenges, the
Company sustained positive earnings, reflecting its resilience and ability to navigate through an
increasingly difficult operating environment. Company’s directors, management team, staff and
workers are trying hard to secure more export business with better margins to improve the

results of the Company.
Following is the summarized P&L for a quick review;

Rupees in Thousands

30-JUN-2025 30-JUN-2024
Sales (Net) 12,347,002 12,314,921
Gross Profit 1,158,059 1,232,108
Distribution Cost 499,565 345,925
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Administrative Expenses 484,801 406,081
Other Operating Expenses 39,623 109,105
Other Income 131,460 457,680
Finance Cost 29,641 31,101
Profit Before Taxation 235,889 805,163
Profit After Taxation 286,856 559,502
Earning Per Share 16.87 3291

SUSTAINABILITY, INCLUSION AND EMPOWERMENT INITIATIVES

During the year, the Company remained committed to advancing sustainability, gender
empowerment, and community engagement. Towellers Limited actively participated in the
Women’s Leadership Training Workshop organized by LUMS in collaboration with GIZ, aimed at
enhancing leadership capacity, strategic thinking, and confidence-building among women in the
workplace. In addition, our QMS team engaged with the KDSP Learning Center under the
Education for Life — Year 3 Thesis Project, reinforcing our support for inclusive education and
empowerment of persons with disabilities. These initiatives reflect the Company’s broader
vision of fostering a responsible, inclusive, and sustainable business model aligned with

international best practices.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the section 227 (2) (f) of the

Companies Act, 2017 as at June 30, 2025 is annexed to this report.
DIRECTOR TRAINING

The Company takes keen interest in the professional development of its Board Members.
Directors are kept updated about relevant laws and current matters regarding Corporate
Governance and other regulatory changes. Five directors of the company have completed
certification from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) in compliance with the CCG

rules.

DIVIDEND
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In view of the lower profitability during the year and the strategic allocation of cashflows towards
capital expenditure to strengthen future growth and competitiveness, the Board has decided not
to recommend any dividend for the year. The Company is confident that these investments will
translate into stronger operational performance and improved returns in the coming years. We
sincerely thank our valued shareholders for their patience and understanding as we prioritize

long-term value creation.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and Diluted earnings per share After tax is Rs. 16.87 (2024-Rs. 32.91)
CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW

The Chairperson’s review is part of this annual report and directors of Company fully endorse

contents therein.
AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Mushtaqg and Co. Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves
for re-appointment. The board of Directors on recommendation of Audit Committee proposes
the re-appointment of Mushtaq and Co. Chartered Accountants for the year ending June 30,

2026.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors wish to extend their sincere gratitude to all stakeholders for their continued
support and encouragement. We also acknowledge with appreciation the commitment,
dedication, and hard work of our staff and workers, whose efforts remain the backbone of the
Company’s success. Most importantly, we thank our shareholders for their unwavering

confidence and trust in the Company.

September 29, 2025

Lastd oo -4

Director Director
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has formed sub committees namely Audit and Human Resource and Remuneration

Committees.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Audit committee consist of three members including Chairman of the
Committee. The Committee regularly meets as per requirement of the Code. The Committee
assists the Board in reviewing internal audit system. The committees comprising of members

given belows.

Audit Committee

Muhammad Sarfraz Chairman
Hadeel Obaid Member
Zeeshan K Sattar Member

During the year Four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held in which the attendance by each

Director is as follows.

Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended
Zeeshan K Sattar 3
Hadeel Obaid 4
Muhammad Sarfraz 2

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a HR and remuneration Committee in compliance with the code of
Corporate Governance. The HR and remuneration Committee is per forming its duties in line with

its terms of reference as determined by the Board.

Two meeting was held during the financial year ended lune 30, 2025

a2
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HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Niaz Muhammad Chairman
Mehreen Obaid agha Member
Valy Tariq Rangoonwala Member

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is pleased to state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best
practices of corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility in respect of the

corporate and financial reporting framework and thus states that:

e The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements except as disclosed and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

* |International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements.

e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

¢ There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,
as detailed in the regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

e The highlights of operating and financial data for the last six years are annexed in the

Annual Report 2025.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to The Members of Towellers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Towellers Limited, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss and the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and nates ta
the financial statements, including material accounting poliey information and other explanatory information,
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given (o us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Cede of Ethics for Professional Accountants
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matlers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters, Following are the Key audit matters:

S No,
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in audit

1 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(GRATUITY)

We evaluated the gqualification of actuary and
assessed, whether the assumpitions used in valuation
report for calculating the gratuity plan ligbilities,

Refer to note no. 21 1o the audited financial
statements.
The Company operates an unfunded gratuity
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MUSHTAQ & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

leading edge alliance
- guaality -
Mambar firm

scheme, having net liability of Rs.21929
million, which is significant for the Company.
The valuation of liability requires judgment

including salary increases, inflation, mortality rate
and discount rate assumptions, were reasonable and
consistent with based on industry data. We were

and technical expertise in  choosing
gppropriatc  assumptions. Changes in  a
numbet of the key assumptions, including:
salary increase and inflation;

discount rate; and

= Mortality,

All can have a material impact on the
calculation of the liability. The Company uses
external actuaries to assist in assessing these
assumptions and calculations of thesc
liabilities.

satisfied that the rates used fell within acceptable
ranges,

We understood and tested key contrels over the
completeness and accuracy of data extracted and
supplicd to the Company’s actuary for valuation,
We also performed sample testing to agree
underlying employee data, supporting HR
documeniation and assessed the appropriateness of
the closing liability based on known movements
and assumptions.

We also read and assessed the disclosures made in
the finarcial statements, including disclosures of
the assumptions, and found them to be appropriate,

The use of these actuaries inoreases the risk of
error as data is passed to third parties for
analysis and calculation purposes.

fformriion Ciler thait the Pingncial Staremenis dmd Aoditor’s Repore Thereoi

Munugement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial staternents and our auditor’s report thercon,

Our oplnion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Besponsibilities of Management and Bourd of Directars for the Financial Starements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017) and for such intermal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free fromn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has o realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
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S eanditerr ' fenpensiidities foe e Sodit of the Fin wiectiod Keaiaine iy

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
(rom material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
aecordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise firom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influcnce the economic decisions of users faken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throtighout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fot our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matetial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumslances, but noi for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting aund,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that inay cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and comtent of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. £

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that wo
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, rclated safeguards,

Erom the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report o Other Legal and Regalatary Requivenents
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted and
deposited by the Company in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nouman Arshad, ACA.

MU&\\M ¢ Co-

MUSHTAQ & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Lahore,
Dated: September 29, 2025
UDIN: AR202510724uMJ1OBWNp
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Irtdependent Auditor’s Review Report

Lo rthe members af Towellers Limited on rhe Starement of Compliance canrained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 200759

We have reviewed the cnwelosed Statement of Compliates with the Listed Companies [(Code of Corporate
Covernance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulalions) prepared by the Board of Directors of Towellers Limited (“the
Conmpuny’”)] for the year ended 20 June 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulabion:s,

The responsibility for compliance wwith the Hegualaotions is that of the Board of Dhirectors of the Company . Our
responsibility is lo review whether the Statement of Compliance reflacts the status of the Company's compliance
wilh the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-complianec with the
requiremehts af the Regulaticms‘ A review 15 hmited primarily to inguiries of (he Company’s personnel and
review of  various  documenis  preepared by the Company b comply with  the Regulations.,

As a part of our andit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the andil and dewvelop an effectiva addit approsch. We are not
required fo consider whebther the Board ol Directors’ sialemoent on internal control covers all risks and conbrols or
to Jform an opinicn on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporale governance
provedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Company to place before the Audit Commiltee, and upon recornmendation of the
Audit Committec, Plﬂcr_‘ trefore the Board of [reckors for theis review arndd approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactHons by the HBoard of Directors upon recommendation of the Awdadit Commillee.

Bascd on our revicw, cxceept for the below mentioned  instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our
attention which causca us b bBeliove that the Statement of Complisnce does not appreopriately reflect the
company’s cormpliance, in all material respects, with the requirtements comtained in the Regulations as applicable
Lo the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025,

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Code were ohserved which are stated as

ureler
Roguircient Reogulation MNon-Compliances
The Board constitube the 0¥ Currently anti-harassment policy and its functions ave being
anti-harassment policy to performed by the Human Resouwrce Commilitee according to the
safeguard the rights and Company's Policy
well-being of emplaoyees

Role of board to address LOA Newly introduced regulation by SECDE during June, 2024, Being

sustaanabilify risk anpd revicwed by the board (or compliance in futuire,

appoartunilics.

Requirement to attain DTP 19 Except twao directors, all directors have obtained director training

Certification. certificate.

Maomination Commiltee 2501 ) Currenily, the beoard has nol constituled a scparate NC The
funclion is boing perfformed by the board .

Risle Managemont A1) The board intends to constitite EMC. Currvently the board is

Commitees. | | performingthesedudes.

Plisclosure of significant as Compainy has uploaded limited information on its webasaite, The

pulicies on website Company i3, howover, considcring'to place key clements and

eynopeis of other policies on its website in complianee to OO0

Wushles/ & o

MUSHTACQ & CO.
Lahare: Chartered Accountants
Date: September 29, 2025 Engagement Pariner:
UDIN: CR2025107247dtcViEni6 Nouman Arshad, ACA




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019.
NAME OF COMPANY TOWELLERS LIMITED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30" 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner;

1. The total number of directors are eight as per the following:

Male 4
Female 4
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
CATEGORY NAMES
Independent Director Muhammad Sarfraz
Niaz Muhammad
Non-Executive Directors Mahjabeen Obaid

Zeeshan K. Sattar
Valy Tarig Rangoonwala
Hadeel Obaid

Executive Directors Mehreen Obaid Agha
Sana Bilal

Independent and Executive directors have requisite knowledge and competencies to discharge their
duties, therefore, fraction of (2.67) has not been rounded up.

3 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

4 The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company alongwith its supporting policies and procedures.

5 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2017 and these Regulations.




TOWELLERS LIMITED

7

12

a)

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in her absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Five Directors have obtained directors” training and two directors are exempted from the
requirement of Directors’ Training program as per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. Remaining one director training is in progress and will be
completed in further.

The Board has approved appointment of the Chiefl Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

The board has formed commirttees comprising of members given below:

Aundit Committee

Muhammad Sarfraz Chairman
Zeeshan K. Sattar Member
Hadeel Obaid Member

HR and Remuneration Committee

Niaz Muhammad Chairman
Mehreen Obaid Agha Member
Valy Tariq Rangoonwala Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (Quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committees were as per
following:

Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the year.

HR and Remuneration Two meeting was held during the year.
Committee

The Board has set up an effective internal audit control function which comprises on suitably
qualified and experienced persons.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan. that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and




TOWELLERS LIMITED

non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this

regard;

18 We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

19 Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27.32,33, and
36 are mentioned in note no. 9 and 12.

policies on website .

Requirement Regulation Explanation
Number
The Board constitute the anti- 10 Currently anti-harassment policy and its functions
harassment policy to safeguard are being performed by the Human Resource
the rights and well-being of Committee according to the Company’s Policy.
cmployees
Role of the Board and its 10(A) The board will take appropriate measures to
members to address understand and address the principal as well as
Sustainability Risks and emerging sustainability risks and opportunities
Opportunitics relevant to the company and its business,
including climate-related risks and to assess their
potential financial and operational impacts and
implement strategies.
Requirement to attain DTP 19 Only one director training is in process and will be
Certification. completed soon in future.
Nomination Committee 29(1) The function of the Nomination Committee is
being performed by the board.
Risk Management Commitiee 30(1) Presently the HR committee is performing the role
of RMC
Disclosure of significant 35 Company has uploaded limited information on its

website. The Company is, however, considering to
place key elements and synopsis of other policies
on its website in compliance to CCG Regulations.

Annalay,

Director

Dated: September 29" 2025

f eoted gto <o

Director




TOWELLERS LIMITED

SIX YEARS AT GLANCE _
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TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Naote Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant And Equipment 4 5987,803,782 5,601,361, 866
Intangible Asset 5 2,216,100 2,462,334
Right Of Use Asset [ 4,531,820 5,435,798
Long Term Loans And Advances 7 28,153,616 22,164,318
Long Term Deposits 8 30,163,335 29,779,925
6,053,168,653 5,661,204,241
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, Spare Parts And Loose Tools 9 58,601,444 57,969,566
Stock In Trade 10 2.072,517,088 1,479,224, 852
Trade Debts 11 2,088,285,764 2,205,193,423
Loans And Advances 12 82,396,912 285,061,152
Trade Deposits And Short Term Prepayments 13 41,339,711 36,318,400
Other Receivables 14 218,858,181 218,520,244
Income Tax And Sales Tax Refundable 15 700,777,719 503,149,543
Short Term Investment 16 246,543,690 786,037,671
Cash And Bank Balances 17 524,933,145 701,752,715
6,334,253,654 ©,273,527,570
TOTAL ASSETS 12,387,422,307 11,934,731,811
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized Capital
25,000,000 (June 30, 2024: 25,000,0000) Ordinary Shares OF Rs. 10 Each 250,000,000 250,000, 000
Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up Capital 18 170,000,000 170,000,000
Reserves 19 5,045,433,021 5,659,919,726
Surplus On Revaluation OF Property, Plant & Eqguipment 20 2,762,524,029 2,879,858, 480
8,B77,957,050 8,739,778,206
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Staff Retirement Beneflits 21 219,288,055 190,275,002
Deferred Taxation 2z 133,137,169 368,279,868
Lease Liability 3 3,258,372 4,040,627
Long Term Loan 23 28,395,486 32,508,409
384,079,082 595,103,906
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade And Other Payables 24 2,296,506,744 2,339,921,802
Unclaimed Dividend 25 3,964,601 3,519,240
Accrued Markup 26 161,392 135,733
Book overdraft 27 27,697, 886 *
Current Portion of Lease Liability L] 2,942,254 2,160,000
Current Portion of Long Term Loan 23 4,112,924 4,112,924
Short Term Borrowings 28 790,000,374 250,000,000
3,125,386,175 2,599,549,699
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes form an integral parct of these financial statenients,

feated oo <o

Director

Karachi,
September 29, 2025

Sana Bilal
Director

12,387,422,307

11,934,731,811

Adnan Moosaji

Chief Financial Officer

@




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - Net 30 12,347,001,878 12,314,921,073
Cost of Sales 31 (11,188,943,001) (11,082,813,247)
Gross Profit 1,158,058,877 1,232,107,827
Distribution Cost 32 (499,564,813) (345,925,426)
Administrative Expenses 33 (484,800,989) (406,081,168)
Other Operating Expenses 34 (39,622,685) (109,105,205)
Other Income 35 131,459,874 457,680,456

(892,528,613) (403,431,343)
Profit From Operations 265,530,264 828,676,483
Finance Cost 36 (29,640,967) (31,101,932)
Profit Before Levies And Taxation 235,889,297 797 574,551
Levies 37 (166,036,109) (171,184,843)
Profit Before Taxation 69,853,188 626,389,709
Income Tax 37 216,855,845 (66,888,082)
Profit For The Year 286,709,033 559,501,627
Earnings Per Share - Basic And Diluted 38 16.87 3291

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

_Annaiegy g

[f et o -9
Hadeel Obaid

Director

Karachi,
September 29, 2025

Sana Bilal
Director

Adnan Moosaji'..
Chief Financial Officer




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Reserves
Issued,
Particulars subscribed and Capital Reserve Revenue Reserve Total
Tl up epienl Share Revalution Unappropriated s Tokdl
premium Surplus profit
Rupees

Balance as at July 011, 2023 170,000,000 63,000,000 2135,001,527  5,192,653,945  7,390,745472 7,560,745 472
Profit for the year - - 559,501,627 559,501,627 559,501,627
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 794,477,322 (4,946,215) 789,531,107 789,531,107
Annual dividend of PER 10.00 per share for the year (170000000 (170,000,000) (170,000,000}
ended June 34, 2023 bl 5 g
Transterred from surplus on revaluation of - - {49,710,369) 49,710,369 - -
property, plant & equipment
Balance as at June 30, 2024 170,000,000 63,000,000 2,879858,480 5626919726 8569778206  §739,778,206
Profit for the year 286,709,033 286,709,033 256,709,033
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - - - (12,330,189) (12,530,189) {12,530,189)
Annual dividend of PKR 8,00 per share for the year

136,000,000 136,000,000 136,000,000
ended June 30, 2024 ( ) ) ( )
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of - - (117,334,451) 117,334,451
property, plant & equipment
Balance as at June 30, 2025 170,000,000 63,000,000  2,762,524,029  5,882,433,021  8,707,.957,050 §,877,937,050

The anmexed noles form an integral part of these financial stalemenis.

Hasted 0o Al g '

Hadeel Obaid Sana Bilal Adnan Moosaji'..
Director Director Chief Financial Officer
Karachi,

September 29, 2025

@®




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit For The Year 286,709,033 559,501,627
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss account
(Loss) on remeasurement of staff retirement benefits 211 (20,541,293) (8,108,549)
Less: Related deferred tax 8,011,104 3,162,334

(12,530,189) (4,946,215)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 1,212,567,321
Less: Related deferred tax (418,089,999)

794,477,322

Total comprehensive income for the year 274,178,844 1,349,032,734

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hasted 0o Aoy 4

l—iadeel Obaid Sana Bilal
Director Director
Karachi,

September 29, 2025

Adnan Moosaji'..
Chief Financial Officer




TOWELLERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

MNote Fupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profilt Before Levies And Taxatior 235,880 297 Bl5, 162,927
Adjustments for:
Depreciation i , 423, 187,979,662
Depreciation-right of use assel 603,978 603,97
Amortization i 246,233 273,503 £
Staff retirement benefits - gratoity . 77016373 63,762,872 °
Finance cost ; 20,640,967 aio1e3z
Workers' profit participation fund 14,408,067 43,734,148
(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,930,159) (3,928,173)
Profit before working capital changes 644,798,290 1,128,690,9358
I :
Stores, spare parts and loose tools ' {631.878) 6,136,181
Stock in trade (593,292,236) 145,718,188 |
Trade debte 116,907,659 41,190,350
Loans and advances 202,664,240 (169,669,413) 1
Trade deposits and short term prepayments : (5.021,311) (6,082,826)
Other receivables (37,933 (68,206,737)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payvables {13,928,126) 198,853,661
Cash generated from operations 351,458,705 1,276,639,342
Fimance cost paid i . 31,068, E
Taxes paid {373,940,036) {142,348,967) §
Workers' profit participation fund paid (43,734,148) {135,795,726) §
Leng term loan o emplovees (5,989,295) (2,913,899)
Long term deposits {383,410) 14,491,151
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid . {69,044,613) (57.677,453) ;
Net cash {used in) / generated from operating activities o t I?I-IGR‘-.‘%'%} 921'3259”.
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,645, (195,
Short term investmoent 559,493 980 566,222 402
Fixed capital expenditure (676,580,291) (1,329.727,942) §
Net cash (used in) investing activities T Es ANy (FA8410,580)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term borrowings (4—,‘[12,@25) ’ 26374256
Short term borrowings 5440, 000,374 250,000, (0
Book overdraft ' 27 i 27,697,886 =
Dividend paid (135,554,639) (167,940,105)
Net cash generated from financing activities 478 060,606 R AR TSTT
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 123,180,430 271,349,525
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 701,752,715 430,403,190
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 £24,933,145 701,752,715

The aunexed notes foror an integral part of these financial statements.

fated o -0

Director

Karachi,
September 29, 2025

Sana Bilal
Director

Adnan Moosaji'..
Chief Financial Officer

@D




TOWELLERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1  LEGALSTATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a Private Limited Company on 31st May 1973 (Under Companies Act1913) and subsequently
converted into Public Limited Company on 22nd June 1994 under the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984,(Now Companies Act, 2017) and is
guoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The main business of Company is manufacturing and export of textile made ups, garments and towels,

Following are the geographical locations and addresses of all business units of the Company:

Head office: WSA - 30 & 31, Block - 1, Federal "B" Area Karachi.

Manufacturing units of the Company:
a)  WSA-30 Block - 1, Federal "B" Area Karachi.
b} Plot No.14,15:1,15/2,15/A,16/2,/17/1,17/2,17/3, Sector 12-D North Karachi Industrial Area Karachi.
¢ Plot No & 10 Sector 12-C North Karachi Industrial Area Karachi.
d)  Plot No48 Korangi Industrial Area Karachi,

2 BASIS OF FPREPARATION

21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB)as notifiedunder
the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamie Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and
Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directivesissued underthe

Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

22  Basis of measurement

These financial statementshave been prepared under the historical cost convention exceptas otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting policy

notes.
23 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statementsare presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented

in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

24 Initial application of a standard, amendment or an interpretation to an existing standard

241 Amendments to published accounting and reporting standards which are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

There were certain amendmentsto published accounting and reporting standards that became applicable for the Company during the year but are
not considered to be relevant or did not have any significant effect on the Company's operations and have thereforenot been disclosed in these

financial statements except for the following:

2.41.1 Disclosure detailing shariah and conventional elements
During the year, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP)has made amendmentsto the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act,
2017 whereby certain disclosure requirements have been introduced, which have been presented in note 45 to these financial statements,
2.5  Accounting estimates, judgements and financial risk management

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates,
Ttalso 'n?quires management fo exercise its judgement in the process of app]ying the Com pan}r's acoou nﬁng poﬁ:‘ies. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.




TOWELLERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2.6 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards

2,61 Standards, amendments to approved accountingstandards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the company:
Effective date
{annual reporting periods
beginning on or after)
IFRS7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2026
[FR59 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement {Amendments) January 1, 2026
[FR517 Insurance Contracts Janua v, 2026

Annual improvements (o [FRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 {Consolidated January 1, 2026
Financial Statements) and 1AS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows)

26.2 The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have any material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

263  Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards Board (LASB) has also issued the
tollowing standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locallv or declared exemptby the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30, 2025

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18  Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFR519  Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

3  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statementsare setout below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
3.1  Property, plant and equipment
311 Owned

Theseare stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identifiedimpairment loss, exceptland which is stated at revalued amount less any
identified impairment loss (if any), while building, plant and machinery are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss,

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipmentis charged to income applying the reducing balance method, Depreciation is being
charged at the rates given in note to property plant & equipment.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipmentis charged from the month in which an assets become available for use, while no
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are continually reviewed by the company and adjusted if impact on depreciationis significant. The
company's estimate of the residual value of its property, plant and equipmentas at June30, 2025 has not required any adjustment, as ils impact is

considered insignificant.

The company continually assesses at cach statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respectiverecoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and
the resulting impairment boss is recognized in profit or loss account for the year. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets’ fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the
assets’ revised carrving amount over its estimated useful life.

The profitor loss on disposal or retirementof an asset representedby the differencebetweenthe sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
is recognized as an income or expense. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized.
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32 Revaluation

Revaluation of leasehold land, building, plant & machinery are based on periodic, but atleast triennial, valuation by external independentvaluer.
Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of leasehold land, building, plant & machinery are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in shareholders’ equity under the heading "Surplus on Revaluation of leasehold land, building. plant & machinery”. To
the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, theincrease is first recognised in statementof
proﬁl or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases are first mmgnjsed in other cnmprehem,i\'e ncome to the extent of the rem.ain.ing surp]us
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged Lo statement of profit or loss.

The Company carties out revaluations, considering thechange in circumstances and assumptions (rom latest revaluation, The fair value of the
Company's leaschold land, building, plant & machinery are assessed by management based on independentvaluation performedby an external

property valuation expert as at year end after every three years. For valuation of leasehold land, building, plant & machinery, the current market

prices are used which reguires signiticant judgment as to estimating the revalued amount in terms of property size, location and layout etc,
3.3 Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identifiedimpairment loss and representsexpenditure incurred on fixed assets in the course of
construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use.
34  Intangible assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortization is provided on reducing balance method. A full month's amortization is charged in the month of addition, and no amortization is
charged in the month of de-recognition.

Rate of amortization, which is disclosed in the relevant note, Is designed to write-off the cost over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset.

The carrying value of the intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when eventsor changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable, Ifany such indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-
generating units are written down to their recoverable amount.

35  Investments

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of financial position date or to be sold to raise operating capital, are
included in current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the appropriate classification of its
investments at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.

3.6  Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables

These are stated at cost, Provision is made for the amounts considered doubtiul, Amounts considered irrecoverable are written off to profit and loss

account,
3.7  Stores, spares and loose tools
These are stated at average cosl and goods-in-transit are stated at actual cost.
Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares based on management estimate.

3.8 Stock-in-trade

Slock-in-trade is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value except wasle which is valued at nel realizable value. Cost is delerminedas

follows;

Raw material At weighted average cost or replacement cost which ever is lower

Work in progress At average manufacturing cost

Finished goods At average manufacturing cost or net realizable value which ever is lower
Waste Net realizable value

Raw material in transit is stated at invoice price plus other charges paid thercon upto the reporting date.

Awerage manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods, consist of direct material and proportion of manutacturing
overheads based on normal capacity.

MNet realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business less costs of completion and selling expenses.
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3.10

311

312

3.13

3.14

Trade debts

Theseare classified at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at fair value of consideration receivable.

These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Staff retirement benefils - gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its permanent employees who have completed mininmum
qualifying period of service as defined under the respectivescheme, Liability is adjusted annually to cover theobligation and the adjustment is
charged to profit or koss. The determinationof the Company's obligation under the scheme requires assumptions to be made of future outcomes,
the principal ones being in respectol increases in remuneration, expected average remaining working lives of employeesand discount rate used to
derive present value of defined benefit obligation,

Amounts recognized in the reporting date represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses and unrecognized past service cost,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in comprehensive income for the period in which these arise.

Trade and other pavables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts pavable are recognized and carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future for goods and services received, whether or not invoices to the company.

Taxation

Current year

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determinedin accordance with the prevailing law for texation of income, The
charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates, The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for taxation made in previous vears arising from assessments framed during the year for such years,

Levy

The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current income tax expense for the year in statement of profit
or loss, Any excess of expected income kax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance over theamount designated as current income tax for
the year, is then recognized as a levy.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respectof all temporary differencesarising between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial staterments and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.
Deferredtax liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differencesand deferredtax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable pmﬁbi will be available agalnst which the deductible temporary differencescan be utilized. Deferredtax is calculated at the
rates that are expectedto apply to the period when the differencesreverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax is charged or
credited to profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensiveincome or directly in the equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferredtax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on thesame taxable entity but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a netbasis or these
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously,

Dividend

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

@D
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3.15

3.16

318

3.20

Contingent liabilities

A mmingunll'.iabi]ity is disclosed when iheCom[J.‘my has a possi hle oblig,!u'on as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed L)nl}!
by the oecurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain futureeventsnot who[j}- within the control of the Company; or the Cnmpan}r has a
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Revenue recognition

a) According to the core principles of IFRS-15, the company recognizes the revenue from sale when the company satisfies a performance
obligation (at a point of ime) by transferring promised goods to customers being when the goods are dispatched to customers. Revenue
is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reducedfor allowances such as taxes, duties, commission,

sales returns and discounts,

b) Returmn on bank balances is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable rate of
return.
<) Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognized when right to receive such dividend and bonus shares is established.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that
assetup to the date of its' commencing,

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupeesusing the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. All monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange gains or losses on translation are recognized in the profit or loss account. All non-monetary itemsare translated into rupees al exchange
rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks, cash in hand and short term deposits. For the purposes of cash flow statement cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of temporary overdrawn bank balances.

Impairment

Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets. The Company applies the
simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credil losses for (rade debts, duefrom customers and contract assets. The Company does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetimeECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established
a pravision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

ECONOMIC environment.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in defaultwhen internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any creditenhancementsheld by the Company. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Non-Financial Assets

The earrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment, 1f
such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determinethe extentof impairment loss, if any. Animpairment loss is
recognized as an expensein the profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use,
Value-in-useis ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discountrate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and therisk specificto the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiablecash flows {cash-generating units). An impairment loss is reversed if thereis a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depredation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

@
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321 Financial instruments

a Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:i) Amortized cost where the effectiveinterest rate method will
apply:ii) Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) ; iii) Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will eitherbe recorded in profitor loss or Other Comprehensive Income (OCT), For investment
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equily investment at fair value through other comprehensiveincome. The Company
reclassifics debt investrments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

b Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Company commit to purchase or sell the
asset, Further financial assets are dt!r{‘l‘.\)}sﬂiﬁn!d when the ril;,;hts to receive cash flows from the Anancial assets have expirg‘.d or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ovwnership,

c Measurement
Atinihal recognition, the Company measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in thecase of a financial asset not at fair value I',hrough profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at

FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.
d  Debtinstruments

Subsequent measurementof debt instruments dependson the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt mstruments:

Amortised cost

Assetsthat are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specifieddates to cash
flows that represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost, Interest income from these financial assets is
includedin finance income using the effectiveinterestrate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognitionis recognised directly in profit or loss
and presentedin other income together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presentedas separate line itemin the profit

or loss.

f Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FYTOCL Movements in the
carrving amowint are taken through OCI except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interestrevenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OC1 is reclassified from equity to profitor loss and recognised in other mcome. Interestinconie from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effectiveinterest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presentedin other income and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss,

g Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTEL)

Agsets that do not meet the criteria for amartised cost or FVTOCT are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debtinvestmentihat is subsequently
measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented in finance income/cost in the period in which it arises,

h  Equity instruments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected 1o present fair value
gains and losses on equity investmentsin OCT, there is no subsequentreciassification of fair value gnins and losses to profit or loss fo]ln\vi'ng the
derecognitionof the investment. Dividends from such investmentscontinue to be recognised in profitor loss as other income when the Company's
right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognized as other gains/ losses in the profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses {and reversal of impairment losses) on equily investmentsmeasured are FVTOC] are nol reported separately

from other changes in fair value.

3.22  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offsetand the netamount is reported in the financial statementsonly when there is a legally enforceable right to
setoff the recognized amount and the company intends either to settle on a net basis or o tealize the assets and to settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

@
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3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arms' length price using the method prescribed under the Companies Act,
2017,

Mature of the related party relationship as well as information about the transactions and outstanding balances are disclosed in the relevant note

tor the financial statements,

Capital Management

The company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
developmentof the business. The board of directors meonitors the return on capital and level of dividendsto ordinary shareholders. The company
secks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded

by a sound capital position. There were no changes in the company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Segment reporting
Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the company. An operaling segment is a component of the company thal
engages in a business activities from which it may carm revenues and incor expenses, including revenues and expenses that relates to ransactions

with any of the company's other components, An operating segment's operating results are reviewed by the CEQ to make decision about resources

Segment results that are reported to the CEO includes items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprises mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related income and expenditure, Segment
capital expenditure is the total cost meurred during the period to acquire property , plant and equipment.

The business segments are engaged in providing products and services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from the risk and
reward of other segment Sesnlent-i TE‘.}'H'IF[Pd are garments and towels. which also reflects the management structure of company.

Right-of-use asset

After the commencementdate, the Company measures the right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated identified
impairment losses, if any, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or theuseful life of the asset. Where the ownership of the asset
transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Company will exercise the pnrl:ham_‘ option,

depreciation is charged over the useful life of asset.

Lease liabilities

Al the commencementdate of the lease, the Company recognizes lease Habilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in the period on which the eventor condition that triggers the
payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interes
rates implicit in the leases are not readily determinable. After the commencementdate, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflectthe
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
maodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying assel.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonable certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The C(rmpany has several lease ('rpl'inns that include extension and lerminabon opl‘i('-n:i. Thie C.t,)‘mpany aPPli(eﬁ judg{.‘nu‘.‘nl‘in i:valual:lng whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factor that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal or termination, After the commencement period, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a2
significant eventor change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate.

Contingencies and commitments

The assessment of the contingenciesinherently involves the exercise of significant judgmentas the outcome of the future eventscannot be predicted

with certainty, The management based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and labilities which

may differ on the oocurrence / non-ocourrence of the uncertain futare events not wholly within the control of the management,
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42 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

H P i . Accumulated Written down \ ¥ 5 i
H Particulars Particulars of buyer Cost o Sale proceeds Gain/{Loss) Maode of disposal
H depreciation value
Maotor Velicle
HONTIA CIVIC WAMIQ S ABIR 1250100 L IE] 30,007 1R00, K0 LSIOM  Negatiation
HONDA IREAM.70 ARINTL REHWAN 7,50 S¥I2 14,788 0 15712 Nepotiation
SIEAUKI EFL INSLRANTE 255, 0K1 13167 351,433 RSN {1,533 Insurance Claim
HI-5PEET EEL PNSURANCE 35,76 129 40000 35,705 Insurance Claim
HONTIA CITY PP PNSURANCT 12460 12540 1AM K0 1387 460 Insurance Claim
SUFER FOWER T MUHAMMAD ATAN SR 5,500 kT T 14,884 0 112 Megotiation
2/439,000 1,924,159 714,881 3,645,000 2,930,159
s 2,039,000 1,524,159 4841 3,045 000 293,159
2024 5,596,631 A AN 1,164,527 B[00 3,528,178
43 Had there been no revaluation the related figures of land, building and plant & machinery at June 30, 2025 would have been as follows:
Costas on June || Accumulated Book value || Costasen June || Accumulated § Book value June 30,
30, 2025 depreciation June 30, 125 30, 2024 depreciation il b
Leaschald land THEVES.24 752,759,249 2,292,641 442,292 541
Bualding on leasehold Lund blodob 24 579,992,393 36,473,431 010,460,241 404,074,359 151,791,035
PMant & machinery 273,035,335 73519256 1,538,546,074 2,003,567 570 402,303,048 1,604,264,522
642,290,828 1,514,571 650 23T 3202,320455 1,166,977,637 2,195,345,815
Hs 024
Mote
Tupess Hupee:
44  Capital work in progress - at cost
Building - civil works 343,358,102 112,999,050
[lant & machinery 129,597,746 101,579,647
Salar plant 353,551
473,309,398 214,578,737
The moverment in Capilal work in progress is as follows:
Balance al the beginning of the year 214,578,727 145,063,302
Additions during the year:
Land I 310 466,608 422,365,482
Building - civil works 250,350,022 140,240,382 §
Modor vehicle 1,024,000 ‘
Solar plant 333,550 3,890,000 ;
Plant & machinery 28,008,090 35162977
569,197,279 all3, 282,841
Transfer o nper.{t’mg fived assols .l’exreme
Land 422 UR5 N2
Building - civil works 115,907,994 :
Motor vehice 104000
Solar plant 34800000
F100, 466,608
Balance at the end of the year 473,309,398 214,578,727
5 Intangible Assct
Software 2462353 1735927
Less: Amortization 33 [246,23%) (273,555
2,200, 100 2401354
Amortization rate 1% (Y
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1]

Bl

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Balanee at the beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Drepreciation charge during the year
Balance al the end of the vear

Carrying amounl of lease Habilities and the movernents during the year,

Batance ol the beginning of the year
Additions during the pear

Interest expense

Balance at the end of the year
Overdue

Current portion

Mon-current potion

(%]

5,435,798 -
B0, 776
[B03,978) {BI13,978)
4,831,520 5,435,798
6,068,776
BAKRLTTR
160851
6,200,627 6,039,776
(21600000 {10000
(782,254) (L0E,000)
3,258,372 1040627

Rental contracts are made fora fised peniod subiect o renewal upon mutual consent of Company and lessor, Wherever practicable, the Company secks B elude extension option fo

provide operational flexibility. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain 2 wide range of different terms and conditions. Management exercises significant

fadgement in degermining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercise

discoumiing factor.

inance charge of 1

 (2024: 17.5%

per anmum have been used as

| 2025 11 024 |
Pregent value of
Minimumlease || Finandal charges 2 'I" Minimum lease | | Financial charges Presentvelue of
el T | I P e nE——rI | [ S—
paymenis
Rupees
L bos cni vear 140,000 1,0, 00
Bater than one yead but ot later than Hyve vears 459,70 448,002 1 EHG AsT
Moere than five years 100 1,088,454 4822758 1,364,241
4,304,355 A6 1,384 335 5,303, 708
2025 2024
MNote Rupees Rupees
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loan to employess - secured
Executives Lty | 34 159, 327
Other employecs y e 7,635, 058
41,797,385
Cuoment portion of loans shown under cument assets
Exccutives 12
Other emplovees 1z

Movement in loans to executives

Balance at the beginning of the year

Amount disbumsed during the year

Amount recerved /recovered during the year

Balance at the end of the year

{13,843 7a0)

HE PP

(17,428, 937)

25,155, 616

22,164,318

42,608,927

(&, 449, A00)

28,259,191

4, 656,041

149, 365, 191)

34,159, 327

35,371,750

Maximum amount due from executives durng the year, calculated by reference to month-end balances, was Rs, 36,786,813 (2024: Rs 300,850, 404).

These are interest free loans recoverable in monthly installments . These loans are secured against employees’ retirement benefit obligation-

gratuity
LONG TERM DETOSITS

Security deposits

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Storres

Sprane parts and loose tools

20,163,335

29,779,025

30 160, 250

29, Tra 925

50, 1013, Ta2
8,497, 652

A8 665 123
9,304,443

58,601,444

57, 969, 566
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9.1
52

9.3

0

0.1

10.2

10.3
10.4

1

111

1z

No item of stores, spame and loose tools is pledged as securty as at eporting d ate.
Noibem of stones, spame and loose tools are held for capitalization as at eporting date.

No item of stores, spare and loose tools recorded at NRV as at eporting date.

STOCK IN TRADE

Kaw material 101
Work in process
Finished goods 2

1,286, 119,870 621,997, 756
442 713,741 308,958,013
M, 683,477 552,269,083

2,072,517,088 1,479,224, 852

Raw material stock cost '"ER: Nil have been valued at PKR: Nil being the replacement cost of aw material. The amount charge to profit or less in

respect of raw material written doswn bo net ealizable value is PER: Nil.

Finished Gonds stock cost PER: Nil have been valued at PKR: Nil being the net realizable value of finished goods. The amount charge to pmofit or

loss in mspect of Finished Goods written down to net realizable valoe is PKR: Nil.

Nodtem of stock in trade is pledged as securly as at eporting date.

The finished stocks includes waste stock amounting Hs 945927 and walued at NEV.

Advances:

Lo suppliers
for serices

Adwvance against purchase of land

TRADE DEFOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits

Prepayments

Prepaid markup

Less: Impainnent loss

OTUIER RECEIVABLES

Considered good
Expart rebate

Drawback local texes levies

13,643,769

16,612,950

nl, 753,143

2003, 9495, 30

TN NPPRRRU | N R

267,632 315

2025 2024
MNote Rupees Rupees
TRADE DEBTS
Secured against letter of credit
Foreign debts 1,194,309, 105 TER 612,034
Unsecured-considered good
Foreien debts
Domestic debts
803, 976,659 1,416, 58

Considered doubtful 24,114,663 25,202,139
Allowance for ECL 111 {24,114, 663 (25,202,139

2, (188, 285, Tad 2,205, 193, 423
Particulars of allowance for ECL on doubtiul debts
Balance at beginnifig of the year 25,202,136 20,558,715
Adlpwance no longer requined (6, 998, 636) (A&7, 731)
Charge during the year 33 5,911,160 5,111,155
Balance at the end of the year 24,114, 663 25,202,139
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Cument Portion - Long Term Loans And Advances

Execulive - secured Z
Others - secured 7

13,993, 706

82,356,912

285,061,152

24,673,832
5,106,325

41,339,711 36,318, 400
124,299,117 121,223,152
4,555,064 97,597,096
214,458, 181 218, H3, 248
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025 2024
Mote Rupees Rupees

INCOME TAX ANIX SALES TAX REFUNDABLE

o

N ey
41,474,051
100, 879, 276) §

Prepaid levies

Provision for laxation (adjusted)

Balance at the end of the year 44,619,719 {70,907,852)
Sales tax refundable 656, 158, 000 574,057,395
00,777,719 503, 144,543

16 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

- Fairvalue through profit or loss 16.1 246,543, 690 T, 037,671
16.1 Name of funds 25 2024 025 2024
No. of units Mo of units Bupees Rupees

Faysal Tslamic cash fund 2,162,651 7.813,586 216,758,192 781,360,356

Faysal Islamic Financial Growth Plan-1 289, 530 = 28,957,311 =
HBL lslamic money market 619 146 62,870 14,747
ABL cash funds 26,082 433,717 261,361 4,337,165
Alfalah Islamic Rozana Amdani Fund (AIRAF) 3,607 3,054 340, ThE 328,373

AISE-Alfalah Bslamic Sovercign Plan-1 (AISF-A15P-1) 1,130 - 113,19 -
2,483,628 3,250,702 246,543,690 786,037,671

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 1,823,535 2,819,137

Cash at banks:

In cument accounts H 126,960, 127 230,237,458 i

In saving accounts 17.1 H 5, 144,485 468, 606,120 |
823,109,610 698,953,578
824,933,145 70,752, 715
171 Lt carries mark up al the vate of 4.50% to 10% (2024: 4.5% to 20.50%) per annum.
18 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UF CAPITAL
2025 2024 2025 2024
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
8,372,247 9,372,247 Ordinary shares of Ks. 100 each allotted for consideration 93,722,470 83,722 470
paid in cash
1,002,753 1,012,753 i 10,127,530 10,127,530
Ondinary shams of Bs. 10 each allotted as bonus shares
fi 15,000 6,615,000 Ondinary shares of Rs, 10 each allotted for consideration i, 1501, (001 i, 15601, 000
against plant & machinery
17, 0b, 0y 17, 00, Dot 170, (630, 01000 L7, O, D0
18.1 The sharcholders are entitled to receive all distdbutions to them including dividend and other entitlements in the form of bonus and right shares

as and when declared 1|}r the (_ump::n‘,'. All shares vany "oae vote” per share withouwt estriction,
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19
19.1

19.1.1

15.2

19.2.1

20

n

ni

1.2

11.3

2025 2024
Note Rupees Ruprees
RESERVES 5,545 433,021 5,689,919, 726
CAPITAL RESERVES
Share premium on ordinary shames 19.1.1 &3, 000, 000 63,000,000
Revaluation surplus
&3, (KN, Ol fadd, (00, D00

This reserve can be utilised by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017

REVENUE RESERVES

Unappmopnated profit

This mpresents unappropriated profit and is available for distdbution.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance at the beginning of the Year
Surplus on revaluation of land, building & plant and machinery
Less: Defered Tax

Transfer to equity - incremental depreciation

Less: Defemed Tax

Balance at the end of the year

19.2.1 5,882,433,021 5,626,919,726
5,882 433,021 5,626,919, 736
2,879, 858,480 2,135,091,527
1,212,567,321
(418,059,999)
2,879,838, 480 2,929, 50%, 819
(117,334,451 (49.710,369)

2,762,524, 029 2,879, 858, 450

Revaluation of property plant and equipment was carned out on September 13, 2022 by Mis. Igbal A. Nanjee & company, an independent valuer

which resulted a surplus of Rs. 1,087,255 625/- further mevaluatiems were camied by the KG Traders (Pw) Limited on property plant and

equipment on june 30, 2024 waulting a surplus of Rs. 1,212,567, 321/~ forced sales value of Land, building and plant & machinary have been

assessed Rs. 2,116,200,000/, Rs. 1,226,466,400/- and Rs. 537,176,500/~ nespectively.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Staff retirement benefits-Gratuily

Movement in the net Hability recognized at the eporting date

Opening net liability
Expense for the year

Remeasumemeni Loss recognized in other comprehensive income

Benefits paid during the year
Closing net ligbility
Expense recognized in the profil or loss account

Curment service cost

Interest cost

Expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Netactuarial Loss recognized in the statement of financial position

4 219,288,055 190,275,002
219,288,055 190,275,002

190,275, (102 176,081,034
.2 77,516,373 63,762,872
2.3 20,541,293 8,108,549
28E, 332, b 247,952,455
(69,044, 613) (57,677,453
219,288,055 190,275,002
50, 440, 484 46,051,173
18,075,889 7,711,609
77,516,573 63,702, 872
20,541,293 &, 105,549
20,541,293 &, 105,519
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025 2024
Nate Rupees Rupees
.4 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 190, 275,002 176,081,034
Fast semvice cost - -
Cument service cost 559 440, 454 46,051,173
Interest cost 18,075, 889 17,711,699
Actarial loss 20,541,293 #, 108,549
Benefits paid (69,044, 613) (57,677,453)
21%, 288,055 194, 275,002
1.5 Gratuity expenses have been allocated as follows
Cost of goods sold 59,139,878 47,882,313
Administrative expenses 18,376,495 13,560,554

77,516,373 63,762,871

2.6 Historical information

)25 024 23 2022 021
Present value of defined benefit obligation 219,288,055 150,275, 002 176,061,034 174,793,710 163,375,631
2.7  Recomciliation
Present value of defined benefit abligation 218, 288, 055 190,275,002
214, 258, (55 L%, 275,002

21.8 General description

The scheme provides for lerminal benefits for all of its pemanent emplovees who attain the mimimum qualifying pedod. Annoal chamgges is made
using the actuanal technigue of Proected Unit Credit Method.

1.9 Principal actuarial assumption

Following are a few important actuanal assumption used in the valuation.

W W
Discount rate 12.75% 4. 00%
Avg rate of increase in salary T (0, 1004,
Fl(pwh-d year of SErVices {_\re.!r.\i] 20 19

2110 Sensitivity analysis of actuardal assumptions

The caleulation of defined benefit obligation i sensitive to assumptions given above, The below information summarizes how the defined benefit
abligation at the end of the epoting penod would have inereased ¢ (decreased) as a wsult of change in mspective assumptions by 100 basis

pointk
Increase in Decrease in
assump tion assumption
Discount rate (19,540, 825) 22,443,574
Expected mte of increase in future salares 22,823,288 {20, 166,842)
21.11  Expected gratuily expense for the year ending June 30, 2026 works out to Rs. 100,638, (63,
2112 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 20 vears,
22 DEFERRED TAXATION
Taxable temporary differences 221 133,137,169 368,279, 8ol
22.1 Deferred tax liability' (asset) comprises of temporary differences melating to-
Taxable/ideductible) tempmary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 111,089,775 34,602, 738
Surplus an revaluation of property, plant and equipment 209,274, 463 418,089,909
Stafi Retirement Benefils (85,522,341) (74,207,251
Allowance for ECL (9404, 719) (9, 528,834)
Net DInmealized Gain 5,440, 163 -
Impairnmt loss (378, TR} (376, 7R4)
Difference of Minimum Tax & Normal Tax (97,369, 348) -
133,137,164 368, 279, BAS
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23

bl

24.1

4.2

25

26

2025 2024
Maote Rupees Rupees
LONG TERM LOAN
Bank Al Habib Limited 32,508,410 36,621,333
Less: cument portion of long term loan (4,112,924} (4,112,924)
18,395,486 31, 508, 409

This facility has been availed Re.32.51 million (2024: Bs.36.62 million) under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Enemqy which is repayable in

ten wears in quartedy installments. The Loan bears the markup mte of 4% including the 58P Anancing rate of 2% and is secured against the

Equitable Mortgage Charge on land & building and hypothecation charge over the solar equipment.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Creditors

Contract labilities

Accrued liabilities

Workers' profit paticipation fund
Sindh Workers Welfare Fund

Gas infrastnucture development cess

Other payable

1,908,921, 758 1,983,405, 801

4.1 74,747,400 64,997, 544
250,535, b4l 179,476,303

24.2 14,408,067 43,754, 148
4.3 5,331,444 25,765,452
32,000, 000 35,000,000

3,452,435 3,452,455

2,296,506, 744 2,335,921,803

Contract liabilities includes advance from customer and it is mecopnized as revenue when the pedformance chbligation in a

policy is satisfied. Revenue amounting to Rs. 44 752 871 (2024 Rs.36,616.8689) has been recognized in curment yearin msp

customers at the begnming of the year,
Waorkers' profit participation fund

Balanee at the beginning of the Year

Interest on fund utilized in company's business

Paid during the wear

Allocation for the year
Balance at the end of the Year
Sindh Workers Welfare Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year
Allocation for the year

Surcharge

Paid durng the year

Balance at the end of the year
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Unclaimed dividend
ACCRUED MARKUP

Markup on long term benowing

coordance with the

ect of advance from

43,734,145 135,795,726

36 3,314,506 15,625,810

47,050, 554 151,421,5%

(47,050, 654) (151,421,536)

34 14,408,067 43,734,148

14,408, 067 43,734, 148

25,745,452 15,605,378

34 4,874,645 10, 160, 074
31,870 -

30,671,966 25,765,452
(25,340,522 -

5,331, 444 25,765,452

3,964, 601 3,519,240

161,392 135,733

161,392 135,733
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b

271

28

19
291

2911

29.1.2

2913

291.4

2915

2% L6

2907

2025 2024
Mote Rupees Rupees
BOOK OVERDRAFT
Book overdrart i 27,6497 886 -

This represenls rI\m_]lu-s. igeued in excese of bank bBalance, Since thens was no L\ankjng{sc‘iﬁl}-', this haz been z:h,lllpm'] under Buok owend raft,

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured Under Mark up amangements

Export finance scheme 81 790,000, 374 250,000, 000
a0, (00, 374 250, 000, 000

The Company availed Rs.790 million (2024 230 million) from total credit facility of Rupees 1 billion (3024: Rs, 1 billion) under Eslamic Export
Financing Scheme (EFS) Facility under a scheme by SBP having a tenor of six months to facililitate the manufacturing of Istisna goods, The Pres
shipment bomwving is settled through expott proceeds and its pricing is as per SBP rate, The facility is secured against Registersd Hypothecation
Charge over Stocks & Receivables, Lien over Export Documents, Registered Hypothecation charge over Plant & Machinery, Accepted Draft,
Equitable Mortgame Change over Land & Buildings,

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Conlingencies

The Company filed CP No,D-6619 in the Sindh High Court on dated 31-10-2017 against the imposition of section 5A of income tax ordinance 2001
for the tax on undistrabuted profit, The Honomable Sindh - High Courdt grant stay order and  repondents are nestrained for taking any action against
the Company pursuant to the impugned ammendments in Fnance Act 2017, Themsfore noe provision for the tax on undistdbuted pmofit has been
recorded in this financial statement ended June 30, 2025,

The Cempany filed CP.LLA No 4712023 for tax year 2023 against recover the Super Tax én presumphive incomes and on income from other sources
which was also at higher mtes, amounting to Rs. 6823 M, against which no provision has been made in the accounts (on additional heads). The
Company had filed a petition challenging the vires of super tax schedule amended retrwspectively along with notice issued andfor any
proceeding initiated by the Inland Revenue in terms of Section 4-C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 before the Honomble 1slamabad High Court.
The Honorable Court has granted stay on the recovery of such addibional super lax.

In case of unfavarable outcome of the case, the Company might have to incur an additional super tax liability of Rs. 44.48 M, though the Campany
is confident that such mtospective incurrence of tax will not be allowed by the Honorable Court.

The Company filed Petition No.792/2024 for tax year 2024 against recover the Super Tax on presumptive incomes and on income from other sources
which was also at higher rates, amounting to Re. 87.43 M, against which ne provision has been made in the accounts (on addibonal heads). The
Company had filed a petiton challenging the vikes of super tax schedule amended mtospectively along with notice issued and/or any
proceeding initiated by the Inland Revenue in terms of Section 4-C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 beiore the Honomble Islamabad High Count,
The Honorable Court has granted stay on the recovery of such additonal super tax.

In case of unfavomble cutcome of the case, the Company might have to incur an additional super tax liability of Rs. 47.72 M, though the Company
is confident that such wtmwspective incumence of tax will not be allowed by the Honosable Court.

The company had received a recovery notice from the FER under Section 658 tax credit, against which the company has filed & Beview petition
No.CP.LA Noo 864-K/2023 in the Honomble Supreme Court of Pakistan and The Honormble Court has granted stay on the recovery tax. In case of
unfavorable outcome of the case, the Company might have to incur an additional rax lability of Re 1080 M, though the Company is confident that
sich retrospective Incumence of tax will not be allowed by the Honorable Court.

The Company had filed court petition in Honorable Islamabad High Court against the super tax levy on presumptive incomes and on income from
ather sources and on levy of super tax metrospectively. The outcome of the case was decided in favor of the Company by the Honorable High Court.
However the FBR filed appeal with Honorable Supreme Court and recovery notices wene issued by the Department against the Company. The
Honoreble Sindh High Coun granted stay order against any forced recovery by the department in favor of Compeny. The Company also filed an
appeal against the onder by the Income Tax Department. Outcome of this appeal is subect to the pending review petition filed with Honorable
Supreme Courl of Pakistan,

Super Tax provision has been made in these accounts for the tax vear 2025, In case of anfavomble outcome of the case, the Company might have to
incur an additional super tax liability of Rs. $4.48 M, though the Company is comfident that such retros pective incumence of tax will not be
allowed by the Honorable Court.

The Case was filed with the Supmeme Court against the abolishment of tax credits under section 55 B, howewr, the Honomble Court passed the
mdgement in favor of Departtment, Against that judgement, a review petition  was filed with Supreme Court which is still p-ending The
department issued a notice and onder was passed for the reeovery of the eredit elaimed during the tax year 2024, The Company fled an appeal
against the order and Honorable High Court of Sindh ganted stay against any forced necovery in this regand. In case of unfavomable outcome of the

review petition, there might be an additional liability of Rs. 30 M that may be incurmed which has not been accoun ted for in these accounts,

Bank guaran tees issued in the ordinary coumse of business, 22,947,600 22,997,600
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2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
29.2 Commilinents
Raw material 71,309, 700 49, 145,750
Commitments for capital expenditune 5300, 541,978
61, B50, 67H 49, 148, 750
n SALES - NET
Fxpart .1 12,574,912,725 12, 658,892, 347
Local washe 24,413,222 31,531,505
Less: sales bax on waste sales (3,925,830 (5,114, 424)
12,595, 400,117 12, 685,309, 883
Febate & duty dmwback 114,301,315 132,789,236
Commigsion on exports (51, 296,027} (25,390,153
Discount on exports (31, 402,632) (477,757, 894)
12, 347,001, B7R 12,314,921,073
30.1 Exchange gain due to cumency rate fluctuations relating to export sales amounting to Rs. 162,81 million {2024: Rs.42.26 million) has been included
in export 2ales.
2025 2024
Mote Rupees Rupees
31 COST OF SALES
Cost of goods manufactunsd 31,1 10,979, 357, 396 10, 950,920, 280
Finished goods
Opening stock 553,269,083 BAS, 162,050

Clasing =tock

.1 Cost of goods manu factured

Raw material consumed

Murchase (semi finished goods)
Stores and spares consumed
Other manufacturdng expenses
Salanes, wages and other benefits
Communication expenses
Conveyance

Cartage

Litilities

Insurance

Repatrs and maintenance

il and lubncants

Printing and stationery
Subscription, fees and taxes
Entertainment expenses

Vehicle munning and maintenance
Gas infrstmcture development cess
Depreciation-Right-of-use assets
Depraciation

Waork in process
Opening stock
Closing stock

3111 Raw matenal consumed

Opening stock
["urchases - net

Tosing stock

(343,683,477)

{553,269, 083)

11,188 943,001 11,082, 813,247

3111 5,124, (1, H6T 5,602,310, 282
1,131, 835,082 1, 414,572,730

3112 217,175,681 209,214,223
31.1.3 1,708,417, 864 1,579, 263,153
31.1.4 1,794, 918,903 1, 100,458,930
1,721,207 1,840,525

13,570,178 10,954,110

52,226,587 47 #84 525

493,815,468 466,918,037

54, 639,006 54, 753 RBFT

30,505,107 33,244 BPa

£54, 508 413,240

205,420 170,009

136, 765, 244 112,350,447

51,914,370 41,084,508

37,551, 2% 37,752,259

- 1,726,829

& 603,978 B3, 978
4.1.1 255,526,104 153,512.124
11,118, 113,124 10, 874,294,562

(138,733, 718)

0,565,731
3, 95K (¥

Brnsrnna

P, 6L, 718

10,979,357, 396

T, 250, 920, 280

611,997,756
5,743, 183,741

554,197,259
5,665, 110,779

6,415, 186,537

(1,286, 119,670

6,224,305,.038

(621,997, 756)

5, 1249, 066, 667

5,602, 310,282
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2025 2024
Maote Rupees Rupeecs
31,L2  Stores and spares consumed
Opening stock 57,969,566 64, 105,747
Putchases = net 217,807,759 203,075,042
275,777,320 267,183,789
Cosing stock (38,601, 444) (57,969, 566)
217,175,881 205,214,223
3113 Other manufacturing expenses
Fabnc dveing and processing charges 1, 2400 85U 651 1,111, 590,115
Stitching charges 467,518,213 467,573,038
1,708, 417, Bid 1,579,263,152

3114 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.59,139,B78/- (2024: Re. 47, 882, 313/-) in mes peact of staff retirement benefits (gratuiky).

32 DISTRIBUTION COST

Export development surcharge
Expart freight

Clearing and forwarding
Marine insurance
Advertisement

Fair & exhibition
Entertaimment

Travelling

Sales promation expense

i3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors' remuneration

Staff salaries and ather benefits
Conveyance

Vehicle minning and maintenance
Subscription, fees and taxes
Utilities

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional charges
Repairs and maintenance
Communication expenses
Entertainment

Office expenses

Insurance

Advertisement

Allowanee for ECL
Miscellaneous expenses

Other expense

Depreciation

Amortization

31,346,428 31,862,817

291,294,150 157,641,012

7,856,081 £3,018,182

7,264,257 6,708,617

49,000

42,394,238 3,511,876

725,795 304,850

106, 164, 156 49,578,008

2,519,709 1,671,065

499,564, 813 345,925, 426

41,801,820 54,725 584

33.1 263,059, 365 207,212,305
295, 104 53,624

24,436,718 16,469, 671

17,534,082 21, 195,593

#,153,375 5,855, 0R4

757,835 334,242

5, 056, 144 2,345,425

3,570,729 10,892, 446

20,766,164 18,231, 606

11,277,093 11,279,895

M, 61

12,732,809 12,119,487

315,512 188,500

1.1 5,911,161 5,111,155
- 2,170,654

8,958, 452 7,749,225

411 33,897,430 29,467,358
5 246,233 373,593
454,800,989 406,081, 168

331 Staff salades and other benefits inclodes Rs 18,376, 495/~ (2024: Rs.15,880,559/-) in mespect of stafl retirement benefits (gratuity)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Ruprees
34 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Worker's profit patticipation fund .2 14,408,067 43,734,148
Aucitors remnuneration 3.1 1,489,205 1,355,023
Dhomation 3.2 13,096,558 35,781,985
Unrealized exchange loss on FCY - 18,070,975
Un-Realized Exchange loss on Forign vendors 5,722,251 =
Sindh Workers wellare fund M3 4,874,045 10,160,074
Sindh Workers welfore fund-Surcharge 31,870 -
39,622, 85 109, 105, 205
3.1 Auditor's memuneration
Annual audir fee 1,147,125 1,147,125
Half yeary review fee 155,898 155,898
Code of Carporate Govemnance review 35,000 55, 000
Other services 131,272 -
1,489,295 1,358,023

3.2 Duning the cument yeardonation has been given to Lady Duiferin Hospital, SIUT Trust and Gitizen foundation. None of the Directors or their

spouses had any interest in the donee.

35 OTHER INCOME

From financial assets

Profit on savings account 74,538,230 161,301,313

Frofit on muo hoal funds mvestment 50,536,535 299,426 597

Un-Realized -Profit on muteal funds inves tment 25,005 -

Un-Realized Exchange gain on FCY 3,429,045 21,572

From other than Anancial assets

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment +.2 2,930,159 3.925,173
131,459,874 457, 660,456

kL] FINANCE COST

Interest o WPPF 4.2 3,316,500 15,625,810
Marde-up on lease liability 160,851 -
Marcup on short term bormowing 7.818,524 1,441,880
Mark-up on leng term bormowing 1,420,331 1,253,281
Bank charges 16,918,956 11, &00, 961
2, 641,967 31,101,932

37 TAXATION
37.1 LEVIES

Minimuem Tax 37.21 166, 036, 1009 171,154,843
166,036, 109 L71, 154, 543

37.2 INCOME TAX
Current year 3,146,917 113, 566,339
Prior Year Adjustment 7.128,R33 6%, 540
Defemed tax {227,131,595) {46,647,797)
{216,855, B45) 66, 855, 082

3721  These mpresent Minimum tax under section 112 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, nepresenting levies in tenns of requirements of IFRIC 21145 37.

37,22 This year, Company’s tax provision calculated under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 200, therefore relationship between tax expense
and accounting profit is not required,
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2025 024
Mote Rupees Ruprees
8 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic eamings per shane
Profit for the year Rupees 286,709,033 559,501,627
Weighted average number of ardinary shares
outstanding dunng the vear Mumbers 17, (i, 000 17, 008, 000
Eaming per sharne - hasic Rupees 16,87 32.91
Diluted eamings pershare
There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024,
39 REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
025 2024
Rupees Rupees

Manageral remuneration 14,823,504 46,978,316 136, 108,412 12,57h,222 432,152,355 [07,926,311
Bonus - = 19,282,025 = e 13, 10%, 654
Staff retirement gratuity - - 15,425,962 = - —
Urilities - 1,079,652 1,582,041 - 2,390,178 a0%,933
Medical expenses - 1,986,245 1,240,092 24,432,085 675,492
Others - 7.800 224,000 - . 1,365,835

14, 523, 504 50,052,013 173, 866,472 12,576,229 46,9494, 015 25,966, 255
Number of persons 1 7 53 1 7 40

394 The Chief Executive and Directors ane using personal cars but the fuel and maintenance paid by the company and Executives are provided with
free vsze of Companys maintained car The company pays the wiility bills of only one dirsclor and one executive,,
40 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related parties comprise dimectars and key management personnel. Amounts due to related parties are shown i the melevant notes to the
financial statements. Transactions with related parties are disclosed below
Nature of transaction Relationship 2025 2024

Salaries and other benefits Key management personnel 64,875,517 59, 570, 547

The company continues to have a policy whenehy all transactions with melated parties am entered at arm's length.
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025 2024
Rupees Rupees

Nate

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

41.1
1.2
41.3

Credit Ask
Liquidity risk
Market risk

The board of ditectors has owverall msponcsibility for the establishment and oversight of company's rsk management framework,. The board 15 also

responsible for developing and menitordng the company's dsk management policies

41.1  Credit dsk
141,11 Exposure to credit risk
Credit isk mpresents the risk that one party toa financial instrement will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation. Carrying amounts of financial assets mepresent the maximum credit exposume. Credit risk of the Company anses from deposits with
banks, trde debits, loans and advances and other receivables, The management assesses the credit quality of the customess, taking into aceount
their financial posibion, past expenence and other factors, Individual dsk hmets ane set based on intemal or extemal mbngs in accordance with
limits set by the Board. The utilization of credit limits is regulardy monitored.
The Company monitors the crodit quality of its financial assets with mfersnce to histoneal pedormance of such assers and available extemal
credit ratings.
Camying values of financial assets exposed tocredit risk and which ar neither past due nor impaired ane as under
25 2024
Rupees Rupees
Long Term Loans And Advances T 26,153,616 22,164,318
Long Term Deposils ] 30,163,335 29,779,925
Trade debts 11 2,088, 285,764 2,205,193, 423
Loans and advances 12 B2, 39,912 285,061,152
Trade deposits and shiont term prepayments 13 41,339,711 36,518, 40
Other Receivables 14 2185, 558,151 218,820, 245
Short Term Investment 1 2446, 543,690 TEA037 /71
Cash and bank balances 17 A24, 933,145 701,752,715
3,560, 674,355 4,285,127, 852
21.1.2  The maximum exposure o credit dsk (or trade debis at the reporing date by geographical region is as follows.
2025 24
Ruprees Rupees
Domestic 11 4,092 969 1,599,455
Export 11 2,108, 307,458 2,203,593, 968
Allovwance for ECL (24,114, 663) (25,202,139)
2,088, 285,764 7 179,991, 254
The majority of export debtors of the company are situated in Asia, Eumope, Africa, USA and Australia.
41,13 The aging of trade debtors in the staterment of financial position 18 a2 follows:

Not past due

Fast due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 90 davs
Past due 31 days - 1 year
More than one VEAr

2,112 400,427 2,205,193, 423
Allowance for ECL (24, 114, 663) (25,202,139}
2,088, 285,7 2,179,991, 284
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412 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the ssk that the company will not be able to meet its financial nblig:lﬂnns as they fall due. The rnmpany's appmach o
managing liquidity

is to ensume, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet iis liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incoming unacceptable losses or fisking damages o the company's eputation. The follawing s the
contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments.

2025

Six to twelve Moane than

men ths five vears

Momn - derivative

Financial liabilities

TUEEG o 1
2,198,567,397
161,392
70,000, 374
27,697, 556

28,305, 486

133,508,410
2,198,567, 397

161,392
70, D0, 374

Loang Term Loan
Trade And Other Payables
Accrued markup

2,198,567, 597
161,392
Shesrt term borowing 790,000, 374

Book Overdraft

3 (48 935, 460 4,112,924 28 395 486 -

2024

Comtractual T bo five
Cash fows JEArS

MNon - derivative

Financial liabilities

36,621,333

2,339,921,802 3
135,733

250,000, 000

NN R s sa s

36,621,333
2,339,921, 802
135,735
250,000,000

Laig term loan 32,508,409

Trade and olher payables 2,339,921, 802
135,733

250,000, 000

Accrued madkip -

Short term bormowing
Book Overdrft

TY L S S

2,624, 678, B6R 2,626

T TN

BhE 2,550,057,

4,112,924 32, 505, {9 -

41.21 The contractual cash flows relating to the abowve financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark up mtes effective as at June 30
The rates of mark up hawe been disclosed in elevant notes to these financial statements.

413 Market rsk

Market sk is the dsk that the value of the financial instrument may fuctuate as a nesult of changes in madet intenest ates or the market price
due to a change in credit mting of the issueror the instmment. change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities, and liquidity in the market. The company is exposed Lo cumency risk and interest eate sk only,

41.3.1 Cumency risk
Exposure to currency risk
The company is exposed to curmency nsk on trade debts and import of aw materal and stores that ane denomimated in 2 comency other than the

mespective functional cumency of the company, primarily in US Dollar and Euro. The cumencies in which these transactions primarily are

denominated is US Dallar aned Eurm, The company’s exposume to foreign cumency risk is as follows:

:US Dollar Buro  } y Rupees |}
Trade debls 2025 7,274,083 136,419 . 2,108,307, 458
Trade Creditors 2125 1,588,997 = " S, 004, (053
Trade debts 2024 7,976,545 = i 2,203,593, 968

The following significant exchange rates applied dunng the yoar

Average rate

US Daollar to Rupee 23120 2RL45 2R4.10 278.30
Euro o Rupee 315.62 298.41 332,83 298.4]
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Sensitivity analysis

1% weakening of Pak Rupee against the following cumencies at June 30, would have increased | (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the
amount shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in paricular intensst rates, memain constant. 10% weakening of Pak Rupee
against the above curencies at penods ends would have had the equal but opposites effect on the above curencies to the amount shown below,
on the basis that all other varables remain constant.

41.3.2

2025 24
Rupees Rupees
US Dollar (152,988, 843) {221,987, 249)
Eum 4,547,103 &

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and liabilities of the company.
Tnterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Huetuate because of changes in market interst

rates. Majority of the interest rate exposures anses from short and long tenn borowings from bank and tenm depasits and deposits in PLS saving
accounts with banks. At the repoting date the interest rate profile of the company's intemst bearing financial instument is a5 follows.

Fixed mte instruments

Financial assets 5,044 337 442 4, 444 140, 556
Vanable rate instruments
Financial assets o, 149,485 48, 696, 120

Financial liabilities 2,260, 506, 744 2,339,921, 802

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrumenis

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and Habilities at fair value through pmfit or loss, Therefore, a change in

interest rates al the reporting date would not affect profit or loss accounl.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest mtes of the epoding date would have increased [ (decesased ) equity and profit or loss by the amounts

shown below. This analysis assumes that all other vanables, in particular foreign curmency mates, nemain constant. The analysis s pedomed on
the same basis for June 30, 2025

Profit or loss Equity
Increass Ij!:cl\'_‘d!i-l' ncrease dffmdSC E
Cash Aow sensitivity - variable mte instruments 2025 22 965,067 (22,965,067) = =
Cash How sensitivity - varable mbe instruments 2024 23,392,218 (23,399, 218) - -

22997600 22 997, 600

41.3.3  Other Price Risk

Other price risk nepresents the rsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market
prces (other than those ansing from interest mte sk or curmency sk}, whether those changes are cansed by tactors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instraments traded in the market, The company is not exposed to
commndity price sk as it does not hold financial instruments based commeodity prices,

4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The camying value of all financial instruments reflocted in the financial staternents approximate to their fair values. Fair value is determined on
the basis of objective evidence at cach mporting date,

415 Off balance sheet items
Bank guarantees issued m ondinary course of business

.6

The effective rate of interest ( mark ap for the manetary financial assets and habilities ae menfioned m espective notes to the finanaal

ED
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42 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The company's prime objpct when managing capital is to safeguand its ability o continue as a going comcermn in order to provide adequate refums for
shareholder and benefits for other smkeholders and o maintain an optimal capital stucture to reduce the cost of capital.
In onder o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shames or sell assets
to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the indusiry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing mtio, The ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital employed. Bomowings represent long term financing, long =rm financing from directors and others and short term borowings, Total capital
emploved includes total equity as shown in the halance sheet plus bamowings
Total equity Rupees #,877,957,050 8,739, 776,200
Takal borrowing Rupees #232,508,784 286,621,533
Tatal capital employed Rupees @, 700, 465,835 9, (126, 399,735
Cearing ratio Percentage .48 3.184%

43 MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES:
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosure require the the measurement of fair values, for both financial,if any and non-financial
assets and financial labilities The canying value of financial assets and financial liabilities ap proximates their fair values.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability the Company uses valuabon techniques that ame appropriabe in the circumstances and uses
observable market data as faras possible. Fair values are categonzed into different levels ina far value hiemmchy based on the inputs vsed in the valuation
technigques as follows:
-Level :Quoted prices{unadfusted } in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
-Level 22 Inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Laibility.either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).
-Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unchservable inputs)
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset ora liability tall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categndsed in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level inpuat that is significant to the entire measurement.
There were no transfers between different levels of Falr values mentioned above. The mapective basis of valuation at falr values are disclosed in notes o
the account whemever applicable.

44 ANNUAL PRODUCTION CAPACITY
The plant capacity are indeterminable due to multi product plants involving varving processes of manufacturing and mn length of order lots.

45  SHARIAH COMPLIANT DISCLOSURE

Statement of Financial Position

1 Sharah compliant bank borroswin g

V]

Mark-up accrued an Sharah compliant
Short term Shariah compliant Investments

3
4 Shariah compliant bank deposits

Sharah compliant income

HI32 508, FHd

161,392
246, 543, 5H)
743,498,795

286,621,333

135,733
T8b, 137,671
652,875,036

5 Income from Mutaal Islamic Funds 50,336,535 292,429,597

6 Profit on Lslamic saving accounts 61,426,754 146, 516,980

7 Un=Realized Exchange gin on FCY 3,429,545 71,372
Non-Shariah compliant income

8 Profit on Islamic saving accounts 15,111,476 145,612,617

9 Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 2,930,159 3,928,173

Relationship with Sharah compliant financial institutions.
Bank Alhabib Limited,
Dubai Islamic Bank of Pakistan.
Albaraka Bank Limited Pakistan,

Facilities from Islamic banks

The Company has faci

and Rs. 3251 mspectively,

Takaful operators

ities with Islamic Bank for Islamie Export Financing Scheme and SBP Financing Scheme

The Company has Takaful relationship with Century Insurance Company Limited and EFU General Insurance Company Limited.

46 GENDER PAY GAT

The mean gender pay gap and median gender pay gap for the vear ended June 30, 2025 is (52.03) and 1.27 respectively.

fow Renewable Energy to Be. 790 million

&
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a7 SEGMENT RESULTS

47,1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
Information wpnrwd o the (,'.umpnn.\"s
Segment
Garments
T\J wiel 8
Information regarding Company's reportable segments is presented below:

472 Information aboul reportable segments:

GARMENT DIVISION TOWEL DIVISION GARMENY TOWEL DIVISION JTOTAL
DIVISION
2025 2025 2024 2024

Sales-Met 7,251,572,674 5,00%5,420,204 12,347,001,8B78 7, 428,360,391 4,886,560,682 12,314,921,073
Cost of sales {6,419,076,588) [4,769,566,413) (11,188,543,001) §ff 16,596,383 344} |4.4586,429,502) 111,082,813,246)
Gross profits 832,496,026 325,562,791 1,158,058,877 831,977,047 400,130,779 1,232,107,827
Distribution cost (370,211,318} (129,353,494) (499,554,813 (240,501,412) (105,424,014) (345,925,426}
Sepment result 462,284,767 196,209,297 658,494,064 591,475,635 294,706,765 886,182,401
Unallocated |/ expenses | income
Administrative expenses (484, BOD, 985 [406,061,163)
Chther aperabing expenses 139,622,685 (109,105,205)
Cther income 131,459,874 457,680,456
Finance cost [28,640,957) (31,101,532}
Trofit Before Levies And Taxaton 235,889,297 797,574,552
Lewvies [166,036,109] (171,184, 843)
Profit before taxation 69,353,188 633,978,084
Tncome Ltax 216,855 845 (66,488,082}
Profit for the year 186,709,033 559,501,627

47.3  SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

GARMENT DIVISION | TOWEL DIVISION TOTAL

As at June 30, 2025
Segment assets 7,305,353,918 3,282,115,518 10,387,469 446

Segment labilities 1,677,821,979 826,389,930 2,504,211,909
As at June 30, 2024

Sepment assets 6,882,735,017 3,059,225,602 9,941 960,619
Sepment liabilities 1,328,768, 200 537,555,208 1,967,321,417
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474  Reconciliation of segment assets and labilities with total assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position is as follows,
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

Total for reportable segments assets 10,587,465,445 9.941,960,619
Unallgeated assets 1,799,952,860 1,092,771,142
Total assets as pet statement of Hnancial position 12,387,422,307  11,934,731,811
Tatal for reportable segments liabilities 2,504,211,309 1,967,321,417
Unallocated habilities 1,005,253,347 1,227,632,187
Tatal liabilities as per statement of financial position 3,509,465,257 3,194,953,605

475  Geographical Information
The: geographical information analyses
Europe 7821875101
UsA 4,602,027,819
Asia 127.404,314
Africa 13,316,370
Australia 10,289,120
Pakistan 24,413,222
Gross sales PKR 12,599,325,947
Export rebate 114,301,315
Commizsion & Jdiscount (I62.659,554}
Sales Lax (3,925,830)
Total salesnet PKR 12,347,001,878

47.6 Revenues from bwo major customer

48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Tuotal and average number of
2025 2024

Total number of employees as at June 30 - Factory m7 1950
Total number of employees as at June 30 - Head Office 136 133
Total 2353 2083
Average number of cmployees during the year - Factory 2083 1784
Average number of employees during the year - Head Office 134 126
Taotal 2217 14910

49 NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In respect of current period, the board

50 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged & reclassified, where considered necessary, to comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2007
51 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

52 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial staterments were authorized for issue by the board of directors of the company on

Seplember 29 2025

[f aoted o <4 '

Hadeel Obaid
Director

Sana Bilal
Director

Adnan Moosajit..

Chief Financial Officer

Karachi,
September 29, 2025




TOWELLERS LIMITED

PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY

SHAREHOLDERS AS ON JUNE 30, 2025
AS PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Number of SHARE HOLDINGS TOTAL SHARES  PERCENTAGE
SHAREHOLDERS From To HELD
200 1 100 13684 0.0805
230 101 500 68293 0.4017
94 501 1000 81539 0.4796
146 1001 5000 376603 2.2153
21 5001 10000 168831 0.9931
10 10001 15000 127201 0.7482
4 15001 20000 69131 0.4067
1 20001 25000 24283 0.1428
1 35001 40000 40000 0.2353
2 40001 45000 81872 0.4816
1 45001 50000 48817 0.2872
1 110001 115000 115000 0.6765
1 125001 130000 129759 0.7633
1 180001 185000 181580 1.0681
2 465001 470000 937648 5.5156
1 525001 530000 526000 3.0941
3 2455001 2460000 7379247 43.4073
1 2645001 2650000 2647043 15.5708
1 3980001 3985000 3983469 23.4322
1421 17000000 100.0000

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON JUNE 30, 2025

CATEGORIES OF NUMBER OF SHARES PERCENTAGE

SHARE HOLDERS 'HARE HOLDER! HELD OF HOLDING
1 GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 1285 15675559 92.2092
2 GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 105 157688 0.9276
3 INSURANCE COMPANIES 2 655759 3.8574
4 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES 12 357492 2.1029
5 MODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS 1 48817 0.2872
6 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 4 50800 0.2988
7 OTHERS 12 53885 0.3170
COMPANY TOTAL 1421 17000000 100.0000

&




CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON JUNE 30, 2025

Categories of Sharreholders No. of Shares Held Percentage
Share holders

DIRECTORS, CEO & SPONSORS
Ms. Mahjabeen Obaid 1 2,647,043 15.5708
Ms. Mehreen Obaid Agha 1 2,459,748 14.4691
Ms. Sana Bilal 1 2,459,748 14.4691
Ms. Hadeel Obaid 1 2,459,751 14.4691
Mr. Zeeshan K. Sattar 1 468,448 2.7556
Muhammad Sarfraz 1 500 0.0029
Niaz Muhammad 1 100 0.0006
Humza Shaikh Obaid 1 3,983,469 23.4322
INSURANCE COMPANY
National Insurance Company Ltd 1 526000 3.0941
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited 1 129759 0.7633
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Iftikhar Corporation 1 10000 0.0588
Chenab Textile Corporation 1 15800 0.0929
Ranjha Linen 1 10000 0.0588
Fine Fabrico 1 15000 0.0882
MODARABA AND MUTUAL FUND
Al Falah GHP Islamic Stock Fund 1 48,817 0.2872
PUBLIC SECTORS COMPANIES
Y.S. Securityies & Services Pvt Ltd 1 1,000 0.0059
Burma Oil Mills Ltd 1 2,000 0.0118
HH Misbah Securities (Private) Limited 1 2,000 0.0118
NCC - Pre Settlement Delivery Account 1 181,580 1.0681
Ali Asghar Textile Mills Limited 1 2,505 0.0147
Adam Securities Ltd. 1 4,800 0.0282
Nini Securities (Private) Limited 1 1,000 0.0059
M. Munir M. Ahmed Khanani Securities Ltd. 1 41,000 0.2412
Fawad Yousuf Securities (Pvt) Ltd . 1 115,000 0.6765
Trust Securities & Brokerage Ltd. 1 1,307 0.0077
K & | Global Capital (Pvt) Ltd 1 2,000 0.0118
Al-Habib Czpital Markets (Pvt) Ltd 1 3,300 0.0194
OTHERS COMPANIES
Trustees of UBL Fund Mngrs Ltd and Axxociated Coys E 1 3,000 0.0176
Trustees of UBL Fund Mngrs Ltd and Axxociated Coys E 1 360 0.0021
The Times Press (Pvt) Ltd 1 1,571 0.0092
Alpha Alliance (Pvt) Ltd 1 2,000 0.0118
Pakistan Human Development Fund 1 5,358 0.0315
ISPI Corporation (Pvt) Ltd 1 6,419 0.0378
Honda South (Pvt) Ltd 1 3,104 0.0183
Trustee Pakistan Petroleum Non-Executive Staff Pensio| 1 2,026 0.0119
Trustee Pakistan Petroleum Non-Executive Staff Gratui 1 3,500 0.0206
Trustee Pakistan Petroleum Executive Staff Gratuity Fu 1 1,500 0.0088
Pakistan Petroleum Executive Staff Pension Fund-CD SH 1 14,047 0.0826
Novartis Pharma Pakistan Ltd Senior Provident Fund 1 11,000 0.0647
GENERAL PUBLIC
Local 1277 1,208,658 7.1098
Foreign 105 145,782 0.8575
Total 1421 17,000,000 100.0000
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING RIGHTS IN THE LISTED COMPANY
Mahjabeen Obaid 2,647,043
Mehreen Obaid Agha 2,459,748
Sana Bilal 2,459,748
Hadeel Obaid 2,459,751

Humza Shaikh Obaid

3,983,469
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company acknowledges its role as a contributor to the social well-being of the communities in which
it operates. It recognizes its responsibility to help build and sustain a healthier and better society, which
in turn fosters a more positive and supportive business environment.

The Company not only continued to distribute ration packets to the disadvantaged people within and
outside the organization, but also maintained its focus on other areas such as health, mental health,
education, animal welfare, and environment. During the year, the Company made contributions to several
institutions and causes, including Lady Dufferin Hospital, Noorain Khan Tareen Wheelchair Donation
Program, SIUT Trust, The Citizen Foundation, Zindagi Trust, Developments in Literacy, Roshan Pakistan
Academy, Ayesha Chundrigar Foundation, SOS Children’s Village Orphanage, as well as various orphan
houses and general charities supporting deserving individuals. In addition, the Company continues to
support the education of children of its deserving employees, further reinforcing its commitment to
community welfare and social responsibility.

Towellers Limited continues to demonstrate its commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
through a wide range of initiatives focused on sustainability, empowerment, and capacity building. The
Company actively participated in the International Labour Organization (ILO) Sustaining Competitive and
Responsible Enterprises Development Program (SCDP) and the Deutsche Gesellschaft fiir Internationale
Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) — German Corporation for International Cooperation, Decent Future of Skills (DFS)
initiative, reflecting its dedication to responsible business practices and sustainable growth. In addition,
Towellers Limited has extended its support to the Karachi Down Syndrome Program (KDSP), an
organization dedicated to empowering and educating children with Down syndrome, thereby promoting
inclusivity and equal opportunities within society.

In line with its focus on women empowerment, Towellers engaged in the Women’s Leadership Training
Program organized by GIZ in collaboration with the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS),
participated in the Women Leadership Cohort 2, and conducted Gender Talk 3 on grievance handling and
harassment awareness. Furthermore, a Self-Defense Training program was arranged to enhance the
personal safety and confidence of women employees.

On the skills development front, the Company launched On-the-Job Training Courses (OJTC) across
multiple specialized tracks, including Industrial Machine Operator, Quality Control, and Fabric Cutting
Expert. A dedicated training room was also established for unskilled trainees to support their professional
growth. In addition, Towellers took part in the Human Rights and Environmental Due Diligence (HREDD)
Project, reaffirming its commitment to ethical practices and sustainability.

Together, these initiatives underscore the Company’s vision of creating a progressive, inclusive, and
sustainable workplace culture that positively contributes to society at large.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

&D
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The Company remains strongly committed to safeguarding a healthy and safe environment for all, while
diligently adhering to environmental standards at our production facilities. Our responsibility extends
across the entire value chain, as we strive to integrate sustainability into our operations. We are equally
focused on providing a secure and supportive workplace for our associates, with emphasis on reducing
our carbon footprint, conserving natural resources, and maintaining responsible business practices.

In recent years, the Company has invested in advanced dyeing and processing machinery, which continue
to enhance production capacity and efficiency while significantly reducing water and power consumption.
These past investments are delivering ongoing benefits in terms of lower carbon emissions and resource
conservation. Similarly, the previously commissioned biomass boiler system is operating successfully,
enabling steam generation through clean, renewable energy and reducing reliance on fossil fuels.

The Company also prioritizes employee health and wellbeing. Regular participation in blood donation
drives further reflects our commitment to community health. In addition, the entire workforce is covered
under comprehensive medical insurance policies to cater for both routine and emergency medical needs.

To ensure workplace safety, the Company maintains and continually upgrades firefighting systems across
its facilities, supported by regular fire drills, safety inspections, and fumigation drives. Investments in new
boiler systems, coupled with stringent maintenance protocols, provide an added layer of protection for
workers and staff.

Environmental protection remains a cornerstone of our strategy, particularly given the potential risks
associated with textile dyeing and printing. Our effluent treatment plants are designed and operated to
meet and exceed regulatory standards, ensuring wastewater is treated responsibly before discharge,
thereby protecting both our employees and the surrounding ecosystem.

In line with our clean energy initiatives, the Company has successfully installed solar power systems across
most premises. These not only reduce dependency on grid electricity but also align with our commitment
to producing sustainable, green energy. Furthermore, the installation of a smart MRT hanging rail system
has enhanced automation within manufacturing processes, contributing to both cost efficiency and
sustainability.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND TRAINING

Our employees are our greatest assets and the core strength of our business. Towellers firmly believes in
nurturing, investing in, and promoting its workforce. The management is committed to excellence with a
clear vision that strong human resource practices and effective leadership are essential enablers of
productivity and long-term competitive advantage. Accordingly, the Company places great emphasis on
the optimal development of its human capital through structured training and proper guidance.

In the recent past, the Company earned distinction by securing first place in a national lean manufacturing
program, where the application of productivity, quality, and lean management practices enabled
Towellers to outperform peer participants. The Company remains committed to continuing such
professional training initiatives aimed at grooming and developing its workforce. In addition, the
Company’s Directors have also undertaken structured training programs to remain fully conversant with
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the requirements of corporate governance, evolving regulatory frameworks, and the challenges of a
dynamic business environment,

During the year, the Company also ocnboarded Neem Pay, introducing a digital, app-based platform
through which employees can conveniently apply for salary advances. This initiative has significantly
reduced the administrative burden on Company staff in managing numerous advance requests and
employee accounts. Beyond convenience, the application has enhanced transparency, improved record-
keeping, and empowered employees by providing them with greater control over their financial needs.
The platform also facilitates quicker processing, reduced paperwork, and ensures accuracy in payroll-
related transactions.

The Company continues to strengthen its internal processes and controls to improve efficiency and reduce
costs. Initiatives such as replacing imported paper with local alternatives, implementing enhanced
controls over sharp tool inventories, adopting 55 practices, introducing thread and fabric wastage control
systems, and reducing paper consumption by shifting to digital records are examples of ongoing
improvements. These initiatives not only enhance operational performance but also contribute positively
toward sustainability.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company is committed to fostering a culture of accountability, integrity, and ethical conduct. To
support this commitment, a whistleblowing policy has been implemented, providing employees with a
clear and secure channel to raise concerns regarding any suspected misconduct, malpractice, or
impropriety.

The policy outlines the procedures for reporting concerns, the process for review and investigation, and
the safeguards in place to protect whistleblowers from retaliation. It also establishes periodic monitoring
mechanisms to ensure the policy remains effective and relevant. Employees are encouraged to utilize this
framework with confidence, knowing their input contributes to strengthening governance and improving
overall service quality.

INSIDER TRADING

The Company has established strict guidelines to ensure that all employees, officers, members of the
Board, and other relevant persons adhere to ethical practices while trading in the Company’s shares. In
line with these measures, no employee or their spouse is permitted to trade in the Company’s shares
during the designated closed period prior to the announcement of financial results. Furthermore,
employees classified as executives under the Code of Corporate Governance are required to promptly
notify the management of any share transactions undertaken by themselves or their spouses outside of
the closed period.

POLICY FOR SAFEGUARDING OF RECORDS

The Company’s policy for safeguarding records goes beyond regulatory requirements and forms part of a
comprehensive Business Continuity Plan. This framework ensures the preservation of records with
significant or permanent value for periods exceeding the legally stipulated timeframe, in a secure,
efficient, and easily retrievable manner.
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INVESTORS’ EDUCATION

In compliance with the securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's SRO 924(1)2015 dated September
9, 2015, Investors attention is invited to the following information message:

Jama
Punji

A L (g lamonan 5 By Laan

whwnw, jamapungi. pk

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe
Learn about investing at

www.jamapunji.pk
Key features:
G2 Licensed Entities Verification 4l Stock trading simulator
m Seani matsr (based on live feed from PSX)
A ) EE Knowledge center
¢ Jamapunji games® y
- : E@ Risk profiler*
@ Tax credit calculator® ; .
. E A i Financial calculator
W RSh Vetificstion m Subscription to Alerts (event
® Insurance & Investment Checklist notifications, corporate and
< lat ti )
w 220, W . regulatory actions
#? FAQs Answered
s ¥ ' B Jamapuniji application for

I Online Quizzes mobile device

n w
Jjamapunji.pk @jamapunji_pk

“Mobie apps are also available for download for android and ios devices
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& TOWELLERS LIMITED

OTICE OF NNUA GENERA EETIN

Motice 15 haraeby given that the Fifty Second 52nd Annual General Meeting of the

Shareholders of Towellers limited will be held on Tuesday October Z8th Z02Z5 at 3:30

- at the Registared Office of the Company at vwW.S. A, 20-21, Block #1, Faedaral B Area

HKarachi and through video Link facility to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toconfirm the minutes ofthe S1st Annual General Meeting held on October 25th 2024,

2. To receive and adopt the Audited Statements of Accounts for the yvear ended June 30th
2025 togathar with Chairman Raviaw, Diractor's and Auditor's reports tharaon

3. ToappointAuditors for the ensuing year and fix their remuneration.

OTHERS BUSINESS:

A, Ay other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board
HKarachi: M. Farhan Adil

September 29th 2025 Company Secraetary
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Compainy will rermain closed rom Oaclober 27510 2025
to Octobhaer 2Hth 2025 (both davs inclusive), Transfers received N order at the office of
the Company's Share Registrar Mia THHK Associates (Pwvt) Limited, 32-C. Jami
Commercial Street 2, D.H.A Phase V11, Karachi, 75850 by close of business on
Monday 20th, October 2025 will be treated as belng in time to attend and vote at the
meeting.

2. A meaember entitled to attend and vote at this AGHKM may appoint another member as
his/hoer proxxy Lo atltlend the mealing and vole instead of hirmdher, Proxie:s in order 1o e
effective must be recaeived by the Company not later than 48 hours before the mesting
or emailed at farbhan@dtowellars. com. Form of proxy is annexed to this notice and
allached in the Annual Report, which is also available on the Company's vwebsite.,

3. CoC Account Holders will Turther hawve to follow the undsr mentioned guidelines as laid
dowwin in Circular # 1 dated January 26, 2000 isaued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

<. In order to maximize the member's participation, the company is convening this AGM

wvia video link in addition to holding physical meeting with shareholders Accordingly

those members and participants who desire online participation in the AGHM are
requeosled o register themselves by sending an email along with Tollowing particulars
and valid copy of their CRNIC at Tarhang2towesllers. com with subject of “Registration for

TOWL AGM 2025 not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. MName of

Shareholder, CHRNIC RNo, Folio No/CDC Account Mo, Mobile Mo, Email Address. WVideo

Link to join tha AGKM will be shared wilth only those mambers whose aemalls, containing

all the reqguired and correct particulars, are received at farhanci2towellers. com.

Under the second provision of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, listed

companias are requiraed to pay cash dividend toits shareholders only through electronic

rmade directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders, Accardingly,
the Shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic Credit Mandate Form available on

Company's wabsile and send the duly signed form along with a copy of CRIC/ARTR Lo

our Share Registrar in case of physical shares. INn case shares held in CODC then

Elsctronic Credit Mandate Formm must be submitted directly to shareholders

broker/participant/CD{C account services. In case of non-receipt of IBAN detail, the

Company will ba constrained to withhold payment of dividend under Companies

{Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017,

B, Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares if any ara
advised to contact our Share Registrar 1o collect/enquire about their unclaimed
dividend/shares, if any. ln compliances with Section 244 of the Companieas Act, 2077,
after having complaeted the stipulated procedure, all such dividend autstanding for a
peaeriod of 3 years or more from the date due and payable ashall be deposited to the
Federal Govarmnment in case of Unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall ba
dallverad to tha SECP

7. The SECP through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021
has advisad listed companiaes to adhere to provisions of Saction 72 of the Companies
Aclt, 2017 by replacing physical shares issucd by thaem into bBbook ontry form,
sharaeholders, who hold physical shares, are advised o convert their shares into
electronic form in terms of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 .

5. The Company has circulated Audited Financial Statemants 1o its mambears through QR-
enabled code with weaeblink at their registered emall addresses,.. Printed copy of the
s=ame can be provided to the mambers upon request. The Audited Financial Statemeants
of the Company for the yvear ended June 30, 2025, have also been available on the
Company’'s wabsite |

o

htp Afwanw. towellers _comi/financial-information. html

£=18 Pursuant o the provisions of Income Tax Ordinances, 200717, different rates ars
prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the
companies, as undar:

For filers of income tax returns 15%0
For non-Tilers of income t@ax returns 3I0%

10, To comply with various statutory requireaments, and (o avoid any non- complianoce of law

In future, all shareholders are hereby advised to coordinate/update thelir records with
their respective Participants/CDC Investor Account Services /Share Registrar are as
under:
Submission of copies of their valid/updated CNIC/NTMN/Zakat Declaration/Exemption
Formm/Tax Exaemption Certificate, wvalid bank Account detail/IBARN for future cash
Dividend, In ternmnms of section 119 of the Companies Act 2017 and Regulation 47 of the
Companies Regulations, 2024, including Mobile NMumber/ Land line Number and emall
Address, Promptly notify any change in malling address, by writing to the office of
Towellars Share Registrar.

1. Mo gifts /coupons shall be distributed during the Annual Geaenaral Maating, through its
Circular 2 of 2018 dated February 9, 2018/ or vide its S.R.O. 452(1 2025 dated March
17,2025,
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TOWELLERS LIMITED

Form of Proxy
52" Annual General Meeting

I/We
of
Being member(s) of Towellers Limited holding
Ordinary shares hereby appoint
of or failing him / her
Of who is / are also member(s) of Towellers Limited as my/our proxy in
my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the fifty two Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held on October 28" 2025, and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2025
Signed Proxy holder

In the presence of (signature/name and address of withesses) 1.

Folio / CDC Account No. Please affix have Revenue
Stamp of Rs. 10/=

No of Shares held

Signature of Member

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy.

2, Theinstruments appointing a proxy, together with the power of attorney, if any, under which it is signed or
a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Registered Office, W.S.A. 30, 31 Block No. 1,
F.B Area Karachi. not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in circular# 1
dated January 26, 2000 of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan for appointing Proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit
the proxy form as per the above requirement.

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned of the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen

signatures of the proxy holder shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy
form to the Company.
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